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August 14, 2004

Bradley E. Tyler, Esq.
Attorney in Charge
620 Federal Building
100 State Street
Rochester, NY 14614

re: evidence of a judicial misconduct and bankruptcy fraud scheme
Dear Mr. Tyler,

Thank you for taking my call last Wednesday, when we briefly talked about the files that
I prepared for your colleague David N. Kelley, U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New
York, and that his Chief of the Criminal Division, Karen Patton Seymour, Esq., forwarded to
you. They concern a judicial misconduct and bankruptcy fraud scheme, which has shown further
evidence of its existence and depth through an ongoing case in the Bankruptcy Court in your
building, namely, David and Mary Ann DeLano, Chapter 13, docket no. 04-20280.

As mentioned, I have prepared a paper in the form of a motion (1-19, infra) that describes
the latest developments of a pattern of non-coincidental, intentional, and coordinated acts of
wrongdoing involving judicial officers, trustees, and the local parties. The motion demonstrates
how these participants have undermined the integrity of the judicial and bankruptcy systems and
why this matter deserves that a file be opened and treated with high priority.

The motion’s Table of Contents serves as an executive summary. Its first paragraph lets
you know of two important hearings in the Court right there where you are:

1. The one next Monday, August 23, at 3:30 p.m., will reconsider Trustee George Reiber’s
motion to dismiss the case (21, infra) due to the Debtors’ unreasonable delay in producing
documents as well as my statement in opposition (23, infra), which requests his removal on
account of his conflict of interests between his duty to investigate this case and his self-pre-
servation instinct of not uncovering documents that can incriminate him in bankruptcy fraud.

2. The other hearing is set for Wednesday, August 25, at 11:30 a.m. It was noticed by the
Debtors’ attorney, who seeks to disallow my claim (43, infra) in order to eliminate me from
the case, for I am the only creditor who insists on obtaining documents that threaten to expose
bankruptcy fraud, particularly concealment of assets. I will oppose him and again ask that the
Hon. John C. Ninfo, II, issue the proposed order for the Debtors to produce certain documents
(34, infra), which the Judge knew I had requested so that he had me fax the order to him only
to refuse to issue it by citing the “expressed concerns” of the Debtor’s attorney (39, infra),
who nevertheless had earlier failed to preserve any objection to the order.

I trust that this overview will enable you to realize the importance of those two hearings
for the parties and the future of this case. Hence, I respectfully urge you to attend them or have
the attorney reviewing my files do so. Attending those hearings will also give you an opportunity
to witness the interaction between the local parties and Judge Ninfo in their courtroom while I
am absent appearing by phone from New York City. Therefore, I look forward to hearing from
you as soon as you have decided whether to open a file in this matter and to attend the hearings.

Sincerely,

DKWM@Z&
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

In re: David G. DeLano and Mary Ann DeLano

Chapter 13
Case no: 04-20280

NOTICE OF MOTION
AND SUPPORTING BRIEF
FOR DOCKETING AND ISSUE,
REMOVAL, REFERRAL,
EXAMINATION, AND OTHER RELIEF

Madam or Sir,

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that Dr. Richard Cordero will move this Court at the United
States Courthouse on 100 State Street, Rochester, NY, 14614, at the next two hearings scheduled
in this case for August 23 and 25, 2004, or as soon thereafter as he can be heard, to request the
docketing and issue of his proposed order of July 19, 2004, for document production by the
Debtors; the docketing of his July 21, 2004; the removal of Trustee George Reiber and Att.
James Weidman from this case; the referral of the case to the U.S. Attorney and the FBI; the
examination of the Debtors, Trustee Reiber, and Att. Weidman under FRBkrP Rule 2004; and
for other relief on the factual and legal grounds stated below.

I, Dr. Richard Cordero, Creditor in this case, state under penalty of perjury the following:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. AT A HEARING ON JULY 19, 2004, JUDGE NINFO ASKED DR.
CORDERO TO FAX TO HIM A PROPOSED ORDER TO SIGN AND
MAKE IT EFFECTIVE FOR THE DEBTORS TO PRODUCE
DOCUMENTS IMMEDIATELY; DR. CORDERO DID SO, BUT JUDGE
NINFO NEITHER SIGNED IT NOR HAD IT DOCKETED, AND DR.
CORDERO’S LETTER OF PROTEST OF JULY 21, THOUGH
ACKNOWLEDGED BY A CLERK AS RECEIVED AND IN CHAMBERS,
WEEKS LATER HAD STILL NOT BEEN DOCKETED, AND WHEN DR.
CORDERO PROTESTED, IT WAS CLAIMED NEVER TO HAVE BEEN
RECEIVED 2

II. A SERIES OF INEXCUSABLE INSTANCES OF DOCKET
MANIPULATION FORM A PATTERN OF NON-COINCIDENTAL,
INTENTIONAL, AND COORDINATED WRONGFUL ACTS, WHICH
NOW INCLUDE THE NON-DOCKETING AND NON-ISSUE OF
LETTERS AND THE PROPOSED ORDER FOR DOCUMENT
PRODUCTION BY THE DELANOS THAT JUDGE NINFO REQUESTED
DR. CORDERO TO SUBMIT 4
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. JUDGE NINFO’S REQUESTS ON OTHER OCCASIONS OF
DOCUMENTS, WHOSE CONTENTS HE KNEW, TO BE SUBMITTED
BY DR. CORDERO ONLY TO DO NOTHING UPON THEIR BEING
SUBMITTED SHOW THAT JUDGE NINFO NEVER INTENDED TO
ISSUE THE PROPOSED ORDER FOR DOCUMENT PRODUCTION BY
THE DELANOS THAT HE REQUESTED OF DR. CORDERO ON JULY
19, 2004 8

IV. JUDGE NINFO’S DENIAL OF DR. CORDERO’S PROPOSED ORDER
ON THE GROUNDS, DESPITE THEIR UNTIMELINESS, OF ATTORNEY
FOR THE DELANOS’ “EXPRESSED CONCERNS” ABOUT IT SHOWS
JUDGE NINFO’S BIAS TOWARD THE LOCAL PARTIES AND
RENDERS SUSPECT HIS OWN ORDER, WHICH FAILS TO REQUIRE
PRODUCTION BY THE DELANOS OF FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS
THAT IN ALL LIKELIHOOD WILL REVEAL BANKRUPTCY FRAUD 10

V. SINCE JUDGE NINFO HAS FAILED TO ORDER PRODUCTION BY
THE DELANOS OF NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND TO REPLACE
TRUSTEE REIBER, WHO HAS MOVED TO DISMISS THE PETITION
RATHER THAN INVESTIGATE IT, THIS CASE MUST BE REFERRED
TO OR INVESTIGATED BY AN INDEPENDENT AGENCY WILLING
AND ABLE TO PURSUE THE EVIDENCE OF BANKRUPTCY FRAUD 11

V1. RELIEF REQUESTED 13

I. At a hearing on July 19, 2004, Judge Ninfo asked Dr. Cordero to fax to him a
proposed order to sign and make it effective for the Debtors to produce
documents immediately; Dr. Cordero did so, but Judge Ninfo neither signed it
nor had it docketed, and Dr. Cordero’s letter of protest of July 21, though
acknowledged by a clerk as received and in chambers, weeks later had still
not been docketed, and when Dr. Cordero protested, it was claimed never to
have been received

1. Trustee George Reiber filed a motion of June 15, 2004, to dismiss this case and I filed a
statement of July 9, 2004, to oppose it. My statement contained a detailed request for the issue
of an order for production of documents by the Debtors and their attorney, Christopher Werner,
Esq. The request specified which documents were to be produced as well as when, how, and by
whom.

2. At the hearing of Trustee Reiber’s motion on Monday, July 19, I moved for this Court, in the
person of the Hon. John C. Ninfo, I, to issue that requested order. Since I had filed it and
served it on the other parties, you, Judge Ninfo, as well as they knew its contents. You told me
that the Court does not prepare orders and that I should convert my requested order into a
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proposed order. Because some documents were to be produced in just two days, on July 21,
you authorized me in open court to fax my proposed order to you and gave me the number of
your fax machine in chambers. That way you would receive and sign it right away so that it
could become effective timely.

3. On Tuesday, July 20, 2004, I faxed to you my requested order formatted as a proposed order
and modified only to take into account the dates that you had decided upon for initial and
subsequent production of documents. It was accompanied by a cover letter and both were dated
July 19, 2004. It should be noted that the fax number that you gave me in open court and for the
record, namely, (585)613-3299, was wrong. When my fax did not go through, I had to call the
Court and Case Manager Paula Finucane checked and told me that the correct number is
(585)613-4299. Hence, after faxing the, I called back to make sure that the fax had gone
through and Clerk Finucane acknowledged that my letter and proposed order had been received
in chambers. Each page was numbered at the bottom right corner with the number format “page
# of 5”. I faxed them also to Trustee Reiber, Att. Werner, and Assistant U.S. Trustee Kathleen
Dunivin Schmitt. But you failed to sign the proposed order.

4. Hence, on July 21, 2004, I wrote to you to protest that you had not signed the proposed order as
agreed, or for that matter issued any production order at all. Yet, by then PACER' already
contained the description of the hearing on July 19, which included the statement in capital
letters:

Order to be submitted by Dr. Cordero. NOTICE OF ENTRY
TO BE ISSUED.

5. On Monday, July 26, I called the Court and asked Clerk Finucane specifically why my faxed
letters and proposed order of July 19 and 21, had not been docketed yet. She said that they were
in chambers and that she had not received any order to be docketed.

6. Only the following day, July 27, was my July 19 letter docketed, but only it. Indeed, the entry
in the docket reads thus:

07/20/2004 53 | Letter dated 7/19/04 Filed by Dr. Richard Cordero regarding
Proposed Order . (Finucane, P.) (Entered: 07/26/2004)

When one clicks on the hyperlink 53, only the letter —page 1 of 5- downloads as an Adobe PDF
(Portable Document Format) document, but not the order! Why?!

7. By contrast, the entry for Att. Werner’s objection of July 19, 2004, to my claim as creditor of
his clients reads thus.

07/22/2004 51 | Motion Objecting to Claim No.(s) 19 for claimant: Richard Cordero,

Filed by Christopher Werner, atty for Debtor David G. DeLano ,
Joint Debtor Mary Ann DeLano (Attachments: # 1 Proposed Order
# 2 Certificate of Service) (Finucane, P.) (Entered: 07/23/2004)

8. When one clicks on the hyperlinks 51>2 his proposed order disallowing my claim downloads!

" PACER is the Public Access Court Electronic Records service that allows subscribers to see through the Internet
case dockets and to retrieve documents to their computers.
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10.

11.

12.

This is blatant discriminatory treatment.

What is more, on July 27 my letter of July 21 to you, Judge Ninfo, protesting your failure to
issue the proposed order that you had asked me to fax to you was not docketed.

Still by Friday, August 6, neither the proposed order nor the July 21 letter had been docketed.
On that day I inquired about it of Deputy Clerk of Court Todd Stickle. He told me that his
clerks had not received it for docketing and that he would look into it and consult with Clerk of
Court Paul Warren into the possibility of discriminatory treatment.

On Monday, August 9, Mr. Stickle informed me that upon asking you and your Assistant, Ms.
Andrea Siderakis, he had been told that my July 21 fax never arrived.

That explanation for its not being docketed is definitely unacceptable: My fax went through on
July 22 and the copy attached hereto of my telephone bill shows that I did fax the letters and
proposed order on July 20 and 22 to (585)613-4299. In addition, the receipt of my July 21 letter
was acknowledged by Clerk Finucane, as was the place where it was withheld: your chambers.

IL. A series of inexcusable instances of docket manipulation form a pattern of

13.

14.

non-coincidental, intentional, and coordinated wrongful acts, which now
include the non-docketing and non-issue of letters and the proposed order for
document production by the Delanos that Judge Ninfo requested Dr. Cordero
to submit

This is by no means the first time that I send a paper to the court, but it is not docketed. I have
pointed this out to Messrs. Warren and Stickle because it defeats the docket’s important
purpose and service. The docket is supposed to give notice to the whole world of the events in a
case. Through PACER, the docket serves as a document distribution center. Other parties, such
as creditors, as well as non-party entities anywhere can have access to not only the official
dates and description of those events, but also to the documents themselves that have been filed
and can now be downloaded. But if events are not docketed and documents are not uploaded,
they are not available through PACER; and if wrongly entered, they give the wrong idea of
what has occurred in the case.

In my experience as a non-local party dragged before you, Judge Ninfo, by local parties that
appear before you frequently, docket manipulation is a common occurrence and always works
to my detriment. Whether the same biased treatment is given to other non-local parties or only
to those who, like me, have dare challenge your rulings has yet to be determined, for example,
in a multi-non-local party case like this. But the following occurrences already show how
docket manipulation has had significant adverse consequences on me:

a. The most egregious instance of failure to docket concerns case 02-2230, Pfuntner v.
Gordon et al, where Debtor David DeLano is a defendant and the bank /oan officer who
made a loan to the original Debtor, David Palmer, another defendant and the one who,
after filing for voluntary bankruptcy, as the DelLanos did, just “disappeared” to 1829
Middle Road, Rush, New York 14543, from where you would not bring him back into
court. I mailed my application for default judgment against Debtor Palmer on December
26, 2002, but it was not docketed for over 40 days! I had to inquire about it; found out
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from Case Manager Karen Tacy that it was in chambers; and had to write to you
concerning it on January 30, 2003.

b. Even a paper concerning me but filed by another person has been withheld without
docketing: The transcript that I first requested from Court Reporter Mary Dianetti on
January 8, 2003, and that in violation of 28 U.S.C. §753(b) she did not deliver directly to
me, was filed by her only on March 12, 2003, in violation of FRBkrP Rule 8007(a), and
was not entered in docket 02-2230 until March 28, 2003, in violation of FRBkrP Rule
8007(b). Much worse yet, it was not mailed to me until March 26! Who withheld it from
me, with whose authorization, and for what purpose?

c. Moreover, the dates of docketing have been altered: I timely mailed a notice of appeal
from your dismissal of my claims against Trustee Kenneth Gordon in case 02-2230,
Pfuntner v. Gordon et al, on January 9, 2003. Trustee Gordon moved to dismiss it as
untimely filed and I timely mailed a motion to extend time to file the notice. Although
Trustee Gordon himself acknowledged on page 2 of his brief in opposition of February
5, 2003, that my motion had been timely filed on January 29, you surprisingly found at
its hearing on February 12, 2003, that it had been untimely filed on January 30! So you
denied my motion. You did not want to consider the fact that Trustee Gordon had
checked the docket and the filing date of my notice of appeal and had claimed with your
approval in disregard of FRBkrP Rules 8001, 8002, and 9006(¢) and (f) that my notice,
though timely mailed, had been untimely filed. Likewise, Trustee Gordon checked the
filing date of my motion to extend for the same purpose of escaping through a
technicality accountability for his recklessness and negligence as a trustee. He would
hardly have made a mistake in such a critical matter. For your part, you would not
investigate the discrepancy. Shedding light on why you would protect him so, PACER
replied on page https://ecf.nywb.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/login.pl to a query on June 26,
2004, of Trustee Gordon as trustee thus: “This person is a party in 3,383 cases”. More
revealing yet, in all but one of those 3,383 cases you, Judge Ninfo, have been the judge.
You and Trustee Gordon go back a long way. When it came time for you to choose
between protecting him and ascertaining the facts, I did not stand a chance. No wonder
now the docket appears as if I had untimely filed my motion to extend on January 30,
2003.

d. What is more, docketed papers have been withheld: To perfect my appeal to the Court of
Appeals in case 02-2230, I had to comply with F.R.A.P Rule 6(b)(2)(B)(i) by submitting
my Redesignation of Items on the Record and Statement of Issues on Appeal. Suspicious
of another docket manipulation, I sent originals of that critical paper to both your Court
and the District Court on May 5, 2003...only to be utterly shocked upon finding out on
May 24 that although the District Court had transferred the record on May 19, to the
Court of Appeals, the latter’s docket for my appeal, no. 03-5023, showed no entry for
my Redesignation and Statement. Worse still, I checked the dockets of both the
Bankruptcy and the District Court and neither had entered it! The absence of this paper
from the docket could have derailed my appeal, for it would have been assumed that I
had failed to comply with F.R.A.P requirements. I had to scramble to send a copy of my
Redesignation and Statement to Appeals Court Clerk Roseann MacKechnie. Even as late
as June 2, 2003, her Deputy, Mr. Robert Rodriguez, confirmed to me that the Court of
Appeals had received no Redesignation and Statement or docket entry for it from either
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of the lower courts. The Bankruptcy and the District Court had gone as far as physically
withholding my paper from the Court of Appeals!

e. Documents filed by me are not docketed although they are clearly intended to be entered
and documents produced by others are not entered despite the fact that their existence
and importance result from implication: My letter to Deputy Clerk of Court Todd Stickle
of January 4, 2004, was not entered in docket 02-2230 although I served it with a
Certificate of Service, thereby making clear my intention to file it. Likewise, Mr.
Stickle’s response to me of January 28, 2004, was not filed. There was no reason for
keeping these letters out of that docket. This is especially so since in my letter I had
requested information about documents that I described with particularity because they
have no entry numbers of their own since they were not entered. However, their
existence is confirmed by references to them in other entries as well as by their own
nature, i.e., an order authorizing payment to a party and stating the amount thereof must
exist. Nevertheless, Mr. Stickle’s letter ignored that fact and required that I provide entry
numbers before he could process my request for information.

f. Even papers that have been entered on the docket and that appear to be accessible
through a hyperlink, have been described perfunctorily and uploaded with missing
pages: At the beginning of last April I filed three separate papers in this case for docket
no. 04-20280, namely:

1) Memorandum of March 30, 2004, on the facts, implications, and requests
concerning the DeLano Chapter 13 bankruptcy petition, docket no. 04-20280
WDNY

2) Objection of March 29, 2004, to a Claim of Exemptions

3) Notice of March 31, 2004, of Motion for a Declaration of the Mode of
Computing the Timeliness of an Objection to a Claim of Exemptions and for a
Written Statement on and of Local Practice

However, as of April 13, docket 04-20280 read like this in pertinent part:

04/08/2004 | 19 | Objection to A Claim of Exemptions. Filed by Interested Party
Richard Cordero . (Attachments: # 1 Appendix)(Tacy, K.)
(Entered: 04/08/2004)

04/09/2004 | 20 | Deficiency Notice (RE: related document(s)19 Objection to
Confirmation of the Plan and Notice of Motion for a declaration
of the mode of Computing the timeless of an objection to a
claim of exempltions and for a written statements on and of
Local Practice, filed by Interested Party Richard Cordero)
(Finucane, P.) (Entered: 04/09/2004)

These entries have many mistakes and reflected poorly on me as a filer...or as an
“Interested Party” although I am a creditor listed as such in Schedule F of the DeLanos’
petition and in the Court’s Register of Creditors. Was somebody in the Court already

Dr. Cordero’s motion of August 14, 2004, for docketing, issue, removal, referral, examination, etc. page 6 of 19
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prejudging my status after having informally gotten wind of Att. Werner’s intention to
challenge it in future? I had to write to Clerk of Court Warren on April 13 to point out to
him that:

4) the Memorandum was neither an attachment nor an appendix to the Objection
to a Claim of Exemptions. It should have been entered in the docket as a
separate document with its full title, which appeared in the reference clearly
marked as Re:...; otherwise, the title used in 1) above, could be used.

5) Moreover, clicking the hyperlink in # 1 Appendix opened a Memorandum that
was truncated of its first five pages; the missing pages there appeared in the
document opened by the hyperlink for entry 19, which in turn was truncated of
the following 18 pages.

6) For its part, entry 20 contains jarring mistakes:
a) it is not “timeless”, but rather “timeliness”;
b) it is not “exempltions”, but rather “exemptions”;
c) it is not “a written statements”, but rather “a written statement”.

I wrote to Mr. Warren: “I trust you and your colleagues care about how so many
mistakes reflect on you and them. I certainly care about how they reflect on me and how
much more difficult they render the understanding and consultation of the documents
that I filed.” Mr. Warren had the mistakes corrected. But the fact remains that there is no
possible justification for truncating my documents and garbling their description, except
that they were quite critical of:

7) how you, Judge Ninfo, had defended Trustee Reiber and his attorney, Mr.
Weidman, from my complaint in open court on March 8 for their failure to
review the DeLano’s petition even cursorily;

8) how Trustee Reiber and Att. Weidman had nevertheless readied that petition
for submission to you for confirmation of its repayment plan;

9) how Att. Weidman, with the endorsement of Trustee Reiber, had prevented me
from examining the DeLanos at the meeting of creditors;

10) how they had brushed aside the need for investigating the DeLanos as I had
requested in light of the specific suspiciously incongruous declarations in the
petition and my citations to the Bankruptcy Code and Rules contained in my
written objections to confirmation; and how they had prejudged any
investigation that they might conduct by reaffirming in open court that the
DeLanos had filed their petition in good faith; and of course,

11) how you had blatantly disregarded my right under 11 U.S.C. §341, that is,
under federal law, to examine the DeLanos, and instead told me in open court
that I should have asked around in advance to find out how meetings of
creditors are conducted under “local practice” and how I should have had the
courtesy to submit to Trustee Reiber and Att. Weidman my questions for the
DeLanos in advance...mindboggling statements indeed!
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12) and so critical are those truncated and misdescribed documents that more than
four months later you still have not decided my Objection to the Claim of
Exemptions by the DeLanos or declared the mode of computing the timeliness
of such objection, let alone stated:

a) how “local practice” can invalidate federal law,
b) how a non-local finds out reliably what “local practice” is, and

c) why I should waste any more time, effort, and money doing legal
research that will be trumped by whatever “local practice” is said to be.

15. There is a pattern here. No reasonable person can believe that all these different types of docket
manipulation have occurred by pure coincidence or generalized and consistent clerk
incompetence. The pattern is one of wrongful acts, and they are intentional and coordinated.

16. Inscribed in that pattern is your failure, Judge Ninfo, to forward for docketing my letter and
proposed order faxed and acknowledged as received on July 20. Not until after I called on July
26 was the letter docketed on July 27. But not even then was my proposed order docketed and
till this day it has not been docketed as faxed by me. This is a clear violation of FRBkrP Rule
5005(a)(1), which in pertinent part provides thus:

The judge of that court may permit the papers to be filed
with the judge, in which event the filing date shall be
noted thereon, and they shall be forthwith transmitted to
the clerk.

17. Also inscribed in that pattern is the failure to docket my letter faxed on July 22, which is
compounded by the pretense that it was never received, though acknowledged by a clerk to be
in chambers and its transmission is recorded on my telephone bill.

IIL. Judge Ninfo’s requests on other occasions of documents, whose contents he
knew, to be submitted by Dr. Cordero only to do nothing upon their being
submitted show that Judge Ninfo never intended to issue the proposed order
for document production by the DeLanos that he requested of Dr. Cordero on
July 19, 2004

18. However, if you, Judge Ninfo, ever intended for my fax to go through, although the fax number
that you gave me was wrong, you never intended to issue the proposed order that at the July 19
hearing you asked me to fax to you. Yet, you knew the contents of that order since I had
requested it from you in my July 9 statement in opposition to Trustee George Reiber’s motion
to dismiss the Delanos’ petition; whether your knowledge was actual or constructive is
indifferent. There can be no doubt that it was to issue because, as already pointed out above, the
docket itself states in capital letters: “Order to be submitted by Dr. Cordero. NOTICE OF
ENTRY TO BE ISSUED.” But doing dishonor to your word and undermining once more the
trust that a litigant should be able to put in a federal judge, and a chief judge at that, you did not
issue it, actually you would not even transmit it to the clerks for docketing!

19. This is not the first time either that you ask me to prepare and submit a document that you
never intended to act upon. Here are the most blatant instances:
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a. At the pre-trial conference on January 10, 2003, in case 02-2230, you directed me to
submit to you and the other parties three dates on which I could travel from New York
City, where I live, to Avon, outside the suburbs of Rochester, to conduct an inspection.
You stated that within two days of receiving those dates you would determine the most
convenient date for all the parties and inform me thereof. By letter of January 29, 2003, I
informed you and all the parties, including Mr. DeLano’s attorney in that case, of not
just three, but rather six proposed dates. Yet you never acted on them, not even after I
brought the issue to your attention at the hearing on February 12, 2003. So at your
instigation, I cleared those dates in my schedule and kept them open to travel but
through your failure to keep you word it all redounded to my detriment.

b. At a hearing on May 21, 2003, in case 02-2230, I reported on the damage to and loss of
my property caused at the outset by Mr. David Palmer and ascertained through physical
inspection, which was attended by a representative of Mr. DeLano’s attorney in that
case. Thereupon you took the initiative to request that I resubmit my application for
default judgment against Mr. Palmer. I resubmitted the same application that I had
submitted on December 26, 2002. Nevertheless, at the hearing on June 25, 2003, to
argue it, you denied it on the pretext that I had not proved how I had arrived at the sum
claimed. Yet, that was the exact sum certain that I had claimed back in December! Why
ask me to resubmit and get my hopes high if you were going to deny the application on
the basis of an element that you had known for six months? Mr. Palmer too had known it
for that long, for I had served him with the application. He could have opposed the
application if he had only wanted and had complied with his obligation to appear in
court as a defendant after he had invoked his right to protection in court as a voluntary
bankruptcy petitioner. But you took up voluntarily his defense, preferring to protect a
local party already defaulted by Clerk of Court Warren on February 4, 2003, rather than
uphold the rights of a non-local party, me, who had complied with every requirement of
FRBkrP Rule 7055 and FRCivP Rule 55 and had relied on your word to his detriment.

c. Likewise, at a hearing on May 21, 2003 in case 02-2230, you asked that I submit a
separate motion for sanctions on, and compensation from, the plaintiff and his attorney
for their disobedience of two orders of yours, including their failure to attend the very
inspection of property that they had applied to you for. I submitted the motion on June 6,
2003, meticulously discussing the facts and the applicable law and supported by more
than 125 pages documenting my bill for compensation. Yet, that plaintiff and his
attorney were so certain that you would not ask them to pay anything at all that they did
not even bother to submit a brief in opposition. What is more, that attorney did not even
object to my motion at its hearing on June 25. You did it for him and his client by
faulting me for not having included a copy of the air ticket, which represented a
miniscule portion of the requested compensation. Not only that, but you did not impose
even non-monetary sanctions on them, who had shown contempt for your two orders,
thereby undermining the integrity of the court that you are sworn to uphold.

20. By your conduct on those occasions you revealed your true intentions, for as you know, the law
deems a man to intend the reasonable consequences of his actions: You, Judge Ninfo, intended
to wear me down by causing me more waste of effort, time, and money as well as an enormous
amount of aggravation to protect the local parties that appear before you so often and teach a
lesson to a non-local, me, who thinks that just because he is dragged as a defendant into court
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21.

22.

before you he can rely on federal law and ignore “local practice” (see para. 14.f.11) and 12))
and challenge your rulings on appeal.

Wearing me down was also your intention in requesting that I submit the proposed order.
Indeed, if as you stated in your order entered on July 27, “the Case Docket Report properly
reflects what the Court ordered at the hearing on July 19, 2004”, why did you ask me to convert
my requested order into a proposed order at all and fax it to you? You never intended to issue
my proposed order!

The circumstances of issue and contents of that order of yours entered on July 27 are worth
commenting. Since I kept inquiring about your failure to issue my proposed order, you issued
your own, but not before a week had gone by, long after the first date had come and gone for
the DeLanos and their attorney, Christopher Werner, Esq., to begin producing documents. An
objective observer must wonder what would have happened if I had not pursued the matter and,
as a result, you had not issued any order. Would you have upheld a claim that Att. Werner and
his clients did not have to produce any documents because no order compelled them to do so?

IV. Judge Ninfo’s denial of Dr. Cordero’s proposed order on the grounds, despite

23.

24.

25.

their untimeliness, of Attorney for the DeLanos’ “expressed concerns” about it
shows Judge Ninfo’s bias toward the local parties and renders suspect his own
order, which fails to require production by the DeLanos of financial
documents that in all likelihood will reveal bankruptcy fraud

Att. Werner too knew the contents of the proposed order even before I submitted it given that I
had also served him with my July 9 statement, which contained it in the form of a requested
order. Yet, at the July 19 hearing he failed to object to it. Only after I served it on him by fax,
did he object to it, stating in a letter to you solely that “we believe [it] far exceeds the direction
of the Court”. That is why your own order states that “to [my proposed order] Attorney Werner
expressed concerns in a July 20, 2004, letter”. This is an unfortunate hybrid between
‘objections to’ and ‘concerns about’. It is indicative of your awareness that due to untimeliness,
he could not have raised valid objections for the first time after the hearing was over.

How could untimely “concerns” be anything but a pretext not to issue my proposed order?
Evidently, untimeliness is a tool that you only use to dismiss my notice of appeal and my
motion to extend the time to appeal (para. 14.c, supra).

By contrast, you did not dismiss as untimely Att. Werner’s objection to my status as a creditor
of Mr. David DeLano, his client, although:

a. Mr. DeLano has known for almost two years the nature of my claim since I served him
with my complaint of November 21, 2002, in case 02-2230;

b. Att. Werner himself included me among the creditors in the petition for bankruptcy of
January 26, 2004;

c. Att. Werner knew that I was the only creditor to show up at the meeting of creditors on
March 8 and that I was determined to pursue my claim as stated in my March 4
Objection to Confirmation of the DeLLanos’ Plan of Repayment;
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26.

27.

28.

29.

d. Att. Werner objected to my status as creditor in his statement to you, Judge Ninfo, of
April 16, which I refuted in my timely reply of April 25, after which he dropped the
issue and went on for months treating me as a creditor; and

e. Att. Werner continued to treat me as a creditor for more than two months after I filed my
proof of claim on May 15.

It is only now, when my relentless insistence on the production of documents by the DeLanos
can provide evidence of bankruptcy fraud, that Att. Werner tries to dismiss me by disallowing
my claim. By now, however, Att. Werner’s objection to my creditor status is untimely; he is
barred by laches. Consequently, I will contest his motion, set for August 25, to disallow my
claim...but is there any point in doing so?

Will you give my arguments a fair hearing or have you already made up your mind to get rid of
me? The foundation for this question is not only the pattern of biased conduct against me, the
only non-local party, and toward the locals in case 02-2230, described in the previous sections.
There is also the decision made by somebody to denominate me in this case as an “Interested
Party” rather than a creditor (see para. 14.f, supra).

Moreover, that order of yours is an inexcusably watered down version of mine. Despite the
evidence of concealment of assets by the DeLanos presented in my July 9 statement, among
other filings of mine, and discussed at the July 19 hearing, your order fails to require them to
produce bank or debit account statements; documents concerning their undated “loan” to their
son; instruments attesting to any interest of ownership in fixed or movable property, such as the
caravan admittedly bought with that “loan”; etc. Why? What motive could justify preventing
the facts to be ascertained through production of those documents? Dismissing me from this
case will bze the crowning act in the pattern of bias and disregard of legality that we so hope you
undertake!

Since Judge Ninfo has failed to order production by the DeLanos of necessary
documents and to replace Trustee Reiber, who has moved to dismiss the
petition rather than investigate it, this case must be referred to or investigated
by an independent agency willing and able to pursue the evidence of
bankruptcy fraud

Trustee George Reiber has tried to dismiss the DeLanos petition. In so doing, he is motivated
by self-preservation, for if he were to investigate it effectively, he would uncover evidence of
fraud that would also incriminate him for his approval of a patently suspicious petition. In
addition, the longer he keeps this case in his hands, the more he risks exposure for violating his
duties as trustee. This statement is based on factual evidence:

a. Trustee Reiber violated his legal obligation to conduct personally the meeting of
creditors held last March 8 in Rochester; cf. 28 CFR §58.6.

2 For other instances of your bias against me and toward the local parties and the description of other acts of
disregard of the law, the rules, and the facts that form part of a pattern of non-coincidental, intentional, and
coordinated wrongdoing to my detriment, see in docket 02-2230, entry 111, my motion of August 8, 2003, for you
to remove that case to a presumably impartial court, such as the U.S. Bankruptcy Court in Albany, and recuse
yourself from that case.
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b. He supported his attorney, James Weidman, Esq., who conducted that meeting and who
violated 11 U.S.C. §341 by preventing me from examining the DeLano Debtors, putting
an end to the meeting after I had asked only two questions of the DeLanos and would not
reveal what I knew when he asked me —as if [ were under examination!- what evidence I
had that the DeLanos had committed fraud.

c. He pretended to be investigating the DeLanos, as I had requested that he do in my
Objection to Confirmation of March 4, 2004. But when by letter of April 15 I requested
that he state in concrete what investigative steps he had taken, he then for the first time
asked the DeLanos to provide some financial documents in his letter to Att. Werner of
April 20.

d. His request for documents relating to only 8 out of 18 declared credit cards, only if the
debt exceeded $5,000, and for only the last three years out of the 15 put in play by the
Debtors themselves, who claimed in Schedule F that their financial problems related to
“1990 and prior credit card purchases”, reveals either his unwillingness to uncover
evidence of bankruptcy fraud or his appalling lack of understanding of how credit card
fraud works.

e. He waited for months without asking for or receiving any financial documents from the
Debtors while at the same time refusing to issue subpoenas to them or their attorney.
Then he moved on June 15 to dismiss the petition for their’ “unreasonable delay” in
producing documents precisely after they had produced some documents on June 14,
which he so indisputably failed to even glance at that he did not notice how obviously
incomplete and old they were. His conduct demonstrates utter unwillingness to
investigate the Debtors and analyze any of their documents.

f. He admitted in our phone conversation on July 6 that he does not even know whether he
has the power to issue subpoenas —if so, what does he know?!- and that he has never
issued them...yet he has $3,909 open cases, according to PACER. Was there never a
case in such a huge number that required him to subpoena documents to determine
whether the debtor had filed a petition in good faith? Or given such tremendous
workload, did he routinely just dismiss any case likely to consume too much of his time?

g. Whether such tremendous workload caused him to operate by dismissing cases that
required investigation, or his failure to give petitions even a cursory review allowed him
to rubberstamp such a huge number of cases, the fact is that he failed to detect the
glaring indicia that something was wrong with the DeLanos’ petition, such as these:

1) Mr. DeLano has been a bank loan officer for 15 years and still is such at
Manufactures & Traders Trust Bank. Thus, he is an expert in detecting and
maintaining creditworthiness and ability to repay loans. He is also an insider of
the lending industry and must know which credit card issuers assert their
bankruptcy claims more or less aggressively and above what threshold of loss.

2) While a bank officer would be expected to carry the bank’s credit card,
perhaps even at a preferential rate, the DeLanos did not declare possessing any
M&T Bank card, not to mention ‘sticking’ their employer with a bankruptcy
debt.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

3) Mr. DeLano and his working wife declared earnings of $291,470 in only the
three years from 2001-2003.

4) Nevertheless, they declared having only $535.50 in cash or in bank
accounts...with M&T and in credit, of course;

5) two cars worth together merely $6,500;

6) equity in their house of only $21,415, although people in their 60s, as the
DeLanos are, have already paid or are about to finish paying their mortgage, on
which by contrast they owe $78,084;

7) household goods worth only $2,910...that’s all they have accumulated
throughout their work lives!, although they have earned over a hundred times
that amount in only the last three years...unbelievable!

8) Yet, they have accumulated $98,092 in credit card debt, conveniently spread
over 18 issuers so that none has a stake high enough to find it cost-effective to
get involved in this case only to receive 22¢ on the dollar; etc., etc.,...

9) Wait a moment! Where did their $291,470 go?

Trustee Reiber did not ask that question and when I asked it, he did not want to subpoena, or
even just ask for, documents apt to answer it, such as bank accounts that can reveal a trail of
money into other assets. He appears not to understand that so long as there is no explanation for
the whereabouts of the DelLanos’ earnings for at least the 15 years that they have put in play,
there is reasonable suspicion of concealment of assets.

But if Trustee Reiber did review the DeLanos’ documents and did understand the reasonable
grounds for believing that a violation of laws of the United States relating to insolvent debtors
had been committed, he had a legal duty under 18 U.S.C. §3057(a) to report it to the U.S.
Attorney. Yet he failed to do so. Instead, he reported to the Court and the parties his wish to
wash his hands of this case through its dismissal before somebody else, like me, uncovers
enough to indict his competency or working methods for having approved such a patently
suspicious petition.

Indisputably, Trustee Reiber has a conflict of interests that disqualifies him as an impartial and
potentially effective investigator. Do you, Judge Ninfo, have a conflict of interests that explains
why you too would not ask for those documents by signing my proposed order?

It follows that Trustee Reiber must be removed and this case referred to the appropriate law
enforcement and investigative authorities.

VI. Relief requested

34.

Therefore, I respectfully request that the Court, in the person of Judge Ninfo:

a. enter with the date of July 20, 2004, in entry 53 of docket 04-2230 and upload into that
entry of the docket’s electronic version the proposed order of July 19, 2004, that with
knowledge of its contents you asked me to fax to you and I did fax;

b. issue that order, modified by the remark that insofar compliance therewith is still owing,
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the dates of July 21 and August 11, 2004, therein contained are to be understood as two
and 10 days, respectively, from the date on which it becomes effective;

. enter with the date of July 22, 2004, my letter of July 21, 2004, faxed to you on July 22
and reproduced below;

. remove Trustee George Reiber from this case under 11 U.S.C. §324; terminate any and
all relation of Att. James Weidman to this case, whether as a professional person
employed under §327 or otherwise; and prohibit any payment to them or disbursement
by them of funds until otherwise ordered by a competent authority;

. report such removal to the following officers for appointment, after the review,
investigation, and reconstruction of this case is completed, of a successor trustee that is
unrelated to the parties, unfamiliar with the case, beholden to nobody, and willing and
able to conduct a competent, thorough, and zealous investigation of the DeLanos:

1) Mr. Lawrence A. Friedman, Director
2) Donald F. Walton, Acting General Counsel
3) Ms. Debera F. Conlon, Acting Assistant Director for Review & Oversight

Executive Office of the United States Trustees
20 Massachusetts Ave., N.W., Room 8000F
Washington, D.C. 20530

. report this case to the U.S. Attorney under 18 U.S.C. §3057(a) and the FBI for
investigation under 28 U.S.C. §526(a)(1) and into suspected concealment of assets and
other indicia of bankruptcy fraud under 18 U.S.C. §152 et seq.;

. order the following persons to produce and make themselves available for examination
by me, whether as creditor or party in interest, and for the official record, in a designated
room at the United States Courthouse on 100 State Street, Rochester, New York, 14614,
beginning at 9:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., with a one hour lunch break, on September 20,
and, if necessary for further examination, on September 21, 2004, and in any event, on
contiguous dates in September when the examination of each examinee will not be
constrained by any other time limitations:

1) the Debtors under 11 U.S.C. §341; and
2) Trustee Reiber and Att. Weidman under FRBkrP Rule 2004(a);

. enter my opposition to Att. Werner’s motion to disallow my claim, against which I will
argue on August 25;

i. allow me to present my arguments by phone at the two upcoming hearings; not cut off
the phone connection to me until after you declare the hearing concluded; and not allow
thereafter any other oral communication between you and any parties to this case until
the next scheduled public event;

j. reply to my motion of March 31, 2004, for a declaration of the mode of computing the
timeliness of an objection to a claim of exemptions and for a written statement on and of
local practice.
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August 14, 2004

DV:MQJMQCB"/&M

Dr. Richard Cordero

59 Crescent Street

Brooklyn, NY 11208
tel. (718) 827-9521

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Christopher K. Werner, Esq.

Boylan, Brown, Code, Vigdor & Wilson, LLP

2400 Chase Square

Rochester, NY 14604
tel. (585)232-5300
fax (585)232-3528

Trustee George M. Reiber
South Winton Court
3136 S. Winton Road
Rochester, NY 14623
tel. (585) 427-7225
fax (585)427-7804

Kathleen Dunivin Schmitt, Esq.

Assistant U.S. Trustee
New Federal Office Building
100 State Street, Room 6090
Rochester, New York 14614
tel. (585) 263-5812
fax (585) 263-5862

Ms. Deirdre A. Martini
U.S. Trustee for Region 2

Office of the United States Trustee

33 Whitehall Street, 21* Floor
New York, NY 10004

tel. (212) 510-0500

fax (212) 668-2255
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eCast Settlement Corporation
agent for Fleet Bank (RI) N.A. and
Associates National Bank
Becket and Lee LLP, Attorneys/Agent
P.O. Box 35480
Newark, NJ 07193-5480

Mr. George Schwergel
Gullace & Weld LLP
Attorney for Genesee Regional Bank
500 First Federal Plaza
Rochester, NY 14614
tel. (585)546-1980

Mr. Erich M. Ramsey
The Ramsey Law Firm, P.C.

Att.: Capital One Auto Finance Department

Account: 5687652

P.O. Box 201347

Arlington, TX 76008
tel. (817) 277-2011
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Dr. Richard Cordero

Ph.D., University of Cambridge, England 59 Crescent Street
M.B.A., University of Michigan Business School Brooklyn, NY 11208-1515
D.E.A., La Sorbonne, Paris tel. (718) 827-9521; CorderoRic@yahoo.com

| COPY of August 14, 2004, for docketing |

July 21, 2004
Hon. Judge John C. Ninfo, II
1220 US Court House faxed to (585)613-4299
100 State Street
Rochester, NY 14614
re: David and Mary Ann DeLano, Chapter 13 case, no. 04-20280

Dear Judge Ninfo,

Yesterday I faxed to you the proposed order for document production. It was discussed at
the hearing the day before and implements your decision on that occasion. Indeed, after I
requested that you grant my request for such order as described in my July 9 Statement Opposing
the Motion to Dismiss, you stated that the Court does not prepare orders, but rather issues them
on proposal from a party, whereupon I proposed to reformat the text of my requested order into a
proposed order. Having already had the opportunity to read that text, you decided that I could do
so and gave me your fax number to enable you to receive and issue it immediately so that the
parties would have formal notice of their obligation to begin producing certain documents today.

While neither the order has issued nor my proposal has been docketed, a letter by Att.
Werner, delivered via messenger to the Court and protesting the breath of my proposal, has
already been docketed. As I indicated in the letter accompanying the proposed order, Att. Werner
had ten days since I faxed my Statement to him on July 10 to learn the breath of my requested
order, yet he failed to object to your decision that I convert it into a proposed order and fax it to
you. If, as he stated on Monday, he has been in this business for 28 years, the must know his
obligation to raise timely objections. Now it is too late for him to do so.

Nor can he pretend that your recapitulation of what we had to do constituted the total
expression of his and the DeLanos’ obligation. Your recapitulation was that I would submit the
proposed order, that he and Trustee Reiber would submit the missing pages of the credit reports
by today, and that the DeLanos would produce other documents by August 11. Its only reason-
able purpose was precisely to act as such: as a summary of your decisions and our obligations.
Att. Werner cannot distort your intention by casting out the part concerning the order, whose
details he already knew, and retaining the part relating to his obligation expressed in the general
terms of a recapitulation. If the latter two parts of the decision stated all that Att. Werner and the
DeLanos had to do, I trust that you would not have allowed that I waste my time and effort once
more in preparing and submitting a document that you were not going to act upon at all.

Nor can Att. Werner presume that you would content yourself with simply asking him to
do what is expected of any lawyer, that is, submit complete documents, and of one acting in good
faith, which here meant to comply with the Trustee’s April and May requests by submitting all
the credit card statements for the last three years, rather than pretend that by submitting a single
and incomplete statement between 8 and 11 months old for each card he could truthfully “believe
that we have complied in all respects to [sic] the Trustee’s requests”, as he stated to the Court in
his July 13 Statement. The issue of the petition’s good faith has been properly raised. Thus the
proposed order aims to establish the nature of the expenditures and the whereabouts of the assets
through pertinent documents, not just those that suit them. Hence, if the Court wants to be taken
seriously by them and to justify my reliance on its word, it should issue the order as proposed.

DKWM@Z&
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

In re: David G. DeLano and Mary Ann DeLano Chapter 13
Case no: 04-20280

ORDER
FOR DOCKETING AND ISSUE,
REMOVAL, REFERRAL, AND EXAMINATION

Having reviewed the history of the above-captioned case and the papers submitted by the several
parties, and in light of the provisions of the United States Code and Rules applicable to it, the
Court orders as follows:

a. the proposed order of July 19, 2004, submitted by Dr. Richard Cordero to the Court, is to
be entered with the date of July 20, 2004, in entry 53 of docket 04-20280 and uploaded
into the docket’s electronic version to make it publicly available through it, forthwith by
the clerk;

b. said order is incorporated herein and effective immediately; and insofar compliance
therewith is still owing, the dates of July 21 and August 11, 2004, therein contained are
to be understood as two and 10 days, respectively, from the date of this order;

c. the letter of July 21, 2004, submitted by Dr. Richard Cordero to the Court, is to be
entered with the date of July 22, 2004, in docket 04-20280 and uploaded into its
electronic version to make it publicly available through it, forthwith by the clerk

d. Trustee George Reiber is removed under 11 U.S.C. §324 forthwith from this case; James
Weidman, Esq., is to terminate forthwith any and all relation to this case, whether as a
professional person employed under §327 or otherwise; and any payment to them or
disbursement by them of funds in connection with this case is forthwith prohibited until
otherwise ordered by a competent authority;

e. the clerk will forthwith send a copy of both this order and the above-described order of
July 19, 2004, with a pertinent report by this Court to follow shortly, to the following
officers:

1) for review, investigation, and reconstruction of this case as appropriate, and the
subsequent appointment of a successor trustee that is unrelated to the parties,
unfamiliar with the case, beholden to nobody, and willing and able to conduct
a competent, thorough, and zealous investigation of the Debtors:

a) Mr. Lawrence A. Friedman, Director
b) Donald F. Walton, Acting General Counsel
c) Ms. Debera F. Conlon, Acting Assistant Director for Review & Oversight

Executive Office of the United States Trustees
20 Massachusetts Ave., N.W., Room 8000F
Washington, D.C. 20530
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2) under 18 U.S.C. §3057(a) for investigation under 28 U.S.C. §526(a)(1) and
into suspected concealment of assets and other indicia of bankruptcy fraud
under 18 U.S.C. §152 et seq.:

a) Mr. John Ashcroft
Attorney General
U.S. Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Av., NW
Washington, DC 20530-0001

b) Bradley E. Tyler, Esq.
Attorney in Charge
620 Federal Building
100 State Street
Rochester, NY 14614

c¢) Rochester Resident Agent
Federal Bureau of Investigations
300 Federal Building
100 State Street
Rochester NY 14614

f. the following persons are to produce and make themselves available for examination
under FRBkrP Rule 2004 by Dr. Richard Cordero, whether as creditor or party in

interest, and for the official record, in room at the United States Courthouse
on 100 State Street, Rochester, New York, 14614, beginning at 9:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m.,
with a one hour lunch break, on September , 2004, and, if necessary for further

examination, the following day:
1) the Debtors, Mr. David DeLano and Mrs. Mary Ann DeLano; and

2) Trustee George Reiber and James Weidman, Esq.

SO ORDERED
THIS DAY OF
HONORABLE JOHN C. NINFO, II
U.S. BANKRUPTCY JUDGE
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https://www22.verizon.com/foryourhome/mysmarttouch/statementview/Generate Statement.aspx

Today is Sun, 1 Aug 2004

Long Distance Home Products & Services

@ Directory @ Contact us
Online Activity Statement for

all your SmartTouch®" calls and purchases

Customer Support About Verizon Long Distance

718-827-9521
Jull, 2004 - Augl, 2004

Account:
Statement Period:

Important Numbers

If you have any questions about the long distance service provided by Verizon Long Distance, please call 1-
888-599-0107.

Thank you for using SmartTouch from Verizon.

New for SmartTouch customers! Make your account even smarter with our new Rapid Recharge feature.
We'll automatically "recharge" your account for you from your check card or credit card account .
International calls that terminate to wireless phones may incur additional charges

Summary of SmartTouch Account Activity

Starting Balance 14.80cr
Purchases Activity 20.00cr
Direct Dialed Calls 20.48
Ending Balance $14.32cr
Purchases Activity

no. date Description amount
1. 07/19/2004 SmartTouch Purchases 20.00cr
Total Purchase Activity $20.00cr
Direct Dialed Calls

In-State Calls: 718-827-9521

no date time place number min. amount
2. 07/06/2004 15:14 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-263-5706 23.0 1.84
3. 07/10/2004 12:53 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-427-7804 9.0 0.72
4. 07/10/2004 13:02 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-232-3528 9.0 0.72
5. 07/10/2004 13:12 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-263-5862 9.0 0.72
6. 07/15/2004 11:54 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4200 6.0 0.48
7. 07/19/2004 14:25 PM BUFFALO NY 716-841-4506 1.0 0.08
8. 07/19/2004 15:39 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4281 1.0 0.08
9. 07/20/2004 09:41 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4200 2.0 0.16
10. 07/20/2004 09:46 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4299 5.0 0.40
11. 07/20/2004 10:06 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-427-7804 5.0 0.40
12. 07/20/2004 10:10 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-263-5862 5.0 0.40
13. 07/20/2004 10:15 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-232-3528 5.0 0.40
14. 07/20/2004 13:15 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4200 3.0 0.24
15. 07/21/2004 07:46 AM BUFFALO NY 716-841-1207 13.0 1.04
16. 07/21/2004 09:47 AM BUFFALO NY 716-841-6813 3.0 0.24
17. 07/21/2004 11:55 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-546-1980 56.0 4.48
18. 07/21/2004 16:14 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4200 5.0 0.40
19. 07/22/2004 08:41 AM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4299 2.0 0.16
20. 07/22/2004 11:25 AM BUFFALO NY 716- 4.0 0.32
21. 07/26/2004 12:02 PM ROCHESTER NY 585-613-4200 8.0 0.64

Dr. Cordero’s motion of August 14, 2004, for docketing, issue, removal, referral, examination, etc.
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

In re: David G. DeLano and Mary Ann DeLano

Chapter 13
Case no: 04-20280

STATEMENT IN OPPOSITION
TO TRUSTEE’S MOTION To DISMISS
THE DELANO PETITION

Dr. Richard Cordero, creditor, states the following under penalty of perjury:

1. Last June 15, Chapter 13 Trustee George Reiber, Esq., moved the court to dismiss the above
captioned DeLano bankruptcy petition because of Debtor DelLanos’ unreasonable delay in
submitting financial documents. Because such delay has been tolerated by the Trustee due to
his unwillingness or incapacity to obtain those documents or to know what to do with those
received and because there is now evidence that dismissal is contrary to both a trustee’s duty to
report reasonable suspicion of wrongdoing and the interests of the creditors, Dr. Cordero
opposes such dismissal.

Table of Contents

I. Trustee Reiber Has Demonstrated Unwillingness And Incapacity
To Obtain Financial Documents From The Delanos 23

II. Trustee Reiber Failed To Detect Even The Blatant Incompleteness

Of The Documents That He Received On June 14, 2004 24
III. Trustee Reiber Failed And Refused To Take Appropriate Action
Relating To His Request For Documents And His Receipt Of Them 25

IV. If Trustee Reiber Had Analyzed The Petition On Its Own As Well As Against
The Documents Received On June 14, He Would Have Realized Its Questionable

Good Faith, The Evidence Of Wrongdoing, And The Need To Report It 26
V. The U.S. Trustees And The Court Must Take Notice Of Trustee Reiber’s Ineffective

And Halfhearted Effort To “Investigate” The Delanos And Replace Him 28
VI. Relief Requested 29

I. TRUSTEE REIBER HAS DEMONSTRATED UNWILLINGNESS AND
INCAPACITY TO OBTAIN FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS FROM THE
DELANOS

2. Although in his Objection to Confirmation of March 4, 2004, Dr. Cordero requested of Trustee
Reiber financial documents supporting the DeLanos’ petition of January 26, 2004, Dr. Cordero

had to insist with the Trustee and with his supervisor, Assistant U.S. Trustee Kathleen Dunivin
Schmitt, for him to do so. Only in his letter of April 20, addressed to the Delano’s attorney,

23
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Christopher Werner, Esq., did the Trustee requested documents.
3. Even so his request was insufficient because, among other things:

a) it covered only three years out of the 15 years that the DelLanos brought into play by
claiming in Schedule F that their financial difficulties began with their “1990 and prior
credit card purchases”;

b) it concerned only 8 credit cards out of the 18 listed in Schedule F; and

c) it failed to request credit bureau reports from each of the three major bureaus, whose
reports are complementary and must be read together.

4. Despite the insufficiency of Trustee Reiber’s request, no documents were produced. Dr.
Cordero had to insist again that the Trustee take further action to obtain them. By letter of May
18, the Trustee lamely asked of Att. Werner: “Please advise me as to the progress that you and
your clients have made on obtaining the documents which I requested in my prior letter to you
dated April 20, 2004”.

II. TRUSTEE REIBER FAILED TO DETECT EVEN
THE BLATANT INCOMPLETENESS OF THE DOCUMENTS
THAT HE RECEIVED ON JUNE 14, 2004

5. On June 14, the DeLanos submitted meager documents through Att. Werner. Even the most
cursory peek at them shows their unjustifiable incompleteness:

a) both Equifax reports are missing numbered pages!,

b) there is only one single statement for each of the 8§ credit cards covered by the request and
they are from between July and October 2003/, and

c) each of those statements is missing the key section of names of sellers of purchased goods
and services, and dates and amounts of purchase.

6. To browse through only 19 pages that you have requested and have been kept waiting to
receive for months, would it have taken you more than two to three minutes to realize those
defects? Only if your mind went into a spin wondering what conceivable reason could the
DeLanos and their attorney have had to submit between 8 and 11 month old credit card
statements but not those in between, let alone all the previous ones.

7. A closer check of those documents against the figures in the petition and the court-developed
register of claims and creditors matrix points to debt underreporting, account unreporting, and
unaccountability of assets in the petition. These grave defects call into question the good faith
of the DeLanos’ petition. They also support the reasonable inference that the DeLanos have
been and are reluctant to submit more documents, let alone the complete set of requested
documents, due to their awareness that more documents would only further deny such good
faith and warrant an investigation into whether their petition was motivated by a fraudulent
intent as part of a bankruptcy fraud scheme.

8. Actually, it was Trustee Reiber’s attorney, James Weidman, Esq., the first who ever used the
term fraud in connection with the DeLanos’ petition. This he did when he repeatedly asked of
Dr. Cordero at the meeting of creditors on March 8, 2004, whether he knew that the DeLanos’
had committed fraud and, if so, what evidence of their fraud he had. Dr. Cordero specifically

24 Dr. Cordero’s statement of July 9, 2004, in opposition to the dismissal of the DeLano’s petition
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stated that by objecting to the confirmation of the DeLanos’ plan of debt repayment he was not
accusing them of any fraud, and simply wanted to examine them in the meeting of creditors
called precisely to do so. Nevertheless, Att. Weidman reacted in a clearly unlawful and
undeniably suspicious way: He put an end to the meeting after Dr. Cordero, the only creditor
present, had asked merely two questions!

If Att. Weidman was so interested in finding out whether the DeLanos’ had committed fraud,
why would he not allow Dr. Cordero to ask questions of them? Or was he interested just in
finding out how much Dr. Cordero knew? Aside from the fact that it was unlawful for Trustee
Reiber not to preside over the meeting of creditors, but given that his attorney was so keen to
find out any evidence of fraud in connection with the DeLLanos’ petition, should Trustee Reiber
not have been equally keen? Of course he should have been!

IIl. TRUSTEE REIBER FAILED AND REFUSED

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

TO TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION RELATING TO
HIS REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS AND HIS RECEIPT OF THEM

The Trustee has not been keen enough on the documents submitted to him on June 14, to have
looked at them for even two or three minutes. Indeed, in a phone conversation between him and
Dr. Cordero on July 6, he as much as admitted to not having as yet reviewed them. Hence, he
was not, or pretended not to be, aware of their incompleteness and evidence of wrongdoing.

Naturally, if Trustee Reiber were aware of the documents’ grave defects, he would be expected
to fulfill his obligation to report reasonable suspicion of wrongdoing to law enforcement
agencies. Far from it, the Trustee stated that he would not do any such reporting at this time,
would maintain his motion to dismiss, and would not subpoena the DeLanos for any
documents. What is more, he stated that he does not know whether he has subpoena power and
that he has never before used subpoenas!

However, Rule 9016 F.R.Bkr.P. makes Rule 45 F.R.Civ.P. applicable in cases under the Code,
which provides thus:

Rule 45 Subpoena
(a)(3) The clerk shall issue a subpoena, signed but
otherwise in blank, to a party requesting it, who shall
complete it before service. An attorney as office of the
court may also issue and sign a subpoena on behalf of

(B) a court for a district in which a deposition or
production is compelled by the subpoena,...

Since Trustee Reiber is a party as well as an attorney, and in any event he has Att. Weidman at
his side, the Trustee can issue subpoenas to compel the DelLanos to produce the requested
documents. In addition, “any party in interest” can invoke Rule 9016 to compel production of
documents under Rule 2004(a) and (c¢).

Therefore, what prevents Trustee Reiber from using subpoenas to compel the Delanos to
produce the requested documents? Nothing except a lack of willingness or incapacity to fulfill
his obligation under B.C. §704(4) to “investigate the financial affairs of the debtor” and under
B.C. §704(4) to “furnish such information concerning the estate and the estate’s administration

Dr. Cordero’s statement of July 9, 2004, in opposition to the dismissal of the DeLano’s petition 25
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15.

16.

\'A

17.

as is requested by a party in interest”.

Trustee Reiber’s argument that he does not want to use subpoenas because a petition under
Chapter 13 is voluntary and the debtor has a right to withdraw his petition at any time is totally
without merit: The Trustee himself is the one intent on accomplishing the same result through
his motion to dismiss. There would have been no appreciable extra work in issuing by
subpoena his request to the DeLanos for documents contained in his letter of April 20. On the
contrary, he would have spared himself the need to send his letter of May 18.

The fact is that no progress has been made, for even when some documents were submitted to
him on June 14, Trustee Reiber was not willing or able to realize the inescapable minimum of
missing pages and sections and mind-boggling dates. Therefore, how would he ever know what
he still needs to request if he is not aware of what he already received? What would he do with
hundreds of pages of documents covering the last three years, let alone the past 15 years, if he
does not know what to do with 19 pages? He who cannot do the least cannot do the most.

IF TRUSTEE REIBER HAD ANALYZED THE PETITION ON ITS OWN AS
WELL AS AGAINST THE DOCUMENTS RECEIVED ON JUNE 14, HE
WOULD HAVE REALIZED ITS QUESTIONABLE GOOD FAITH, THE
EVIDENCE OF WRONGDOING, AND THE NEED TO REPORT IT

Judge for yourself from the following salient figures and circumstances whether Trustee
Reiber, just as Att. Weidman, has had reason to suspect the petition’s good faith:

a) Mr. DeLano has been a bank officer for 15 years!, or rather more precisely, a loan bank
officer, whose daily work must include ascertaining the creditworthiness of loan applicants
and their ability to repay the loan over its life. He is still in good standing with, and
employed in that capacity by, a major bank, namely, Manufacturers and Traders Trust Bank
(M&T Bank). As an expert in the matter of remaining solvent, whose conduct must be held
up to scrutiny against a higher standard of reasonableness, he had to know better than to do
the following together with Mrs. DelLano, who until recently worked for Xerox as a
specialist in one of its machines.

b) The DeLanos incurred scores of thousands of dollars in credit card debt;

c) carried it at the average interest rate of 16% or the delinquent rate of over 23% for over 10
years;

d) during which they were late in their monthly payments at least 232 times documented by
even the Equifax credit bureau reports of April and May 2004, submitted incomplete;

e) have ended up owing $98,092 to 18 credit card issuers listed in Schedule F;
f) owe also a mortgage of $77,084;
2) have near the end of their work life equity in their house of only $21,415;
h) declared these earnings in just the last three years:

2001 2002 2003 total
$91,229 91,655 108,586 | $291,470

26 Dr. Cordero’s statement of July 9, 2004, in opposition to the dismissal of the DeLano’s petition
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1) yet claim that after a lifetime of work they have only $2,910 worth of household goods!;
j) their cash in hand or on account declared in their petition was only $535.50;

k) the rest of their tangible personal property is just two cars worth $6,500;
1) claim as exempt $59,000 in a retirement account and $96,111.07 in a 401-k account;

m) make a $10,000 loan to their son and declare it uncollectible;

n) but offer to repay only 22 cents on the dollar without interest for just 3 years;

0) refused for months to submit any credit card statement covering any length of time ‘because
the DeLanos do not maintain credit card statements dating back more than 10 years in their
records and doubt that those statements are available from even the credit card companies’;

p) however, the DeLanos:
(1) must still receive the monthly statement from each of the 18 credit card issuers in
Schedule F, given that on April 16, Att. Werner, their lawyer, stated to the court:
“Debtors have maintained the minimum payments on those obligations”;

(2) must have consulted in January 2004, such statements to provide in Schedule F the
numbers of their accounts with those issuers and their addresses; and

(3) must know —Loan Officer DeLano must no doubt be presumed to know- that they
have an obligation to keep financial documents for a certain number of years;

q) despite Dr. Cordero’s requests for financial documents of March 4 and 30, April 23, and
May 23, and the Trustee’s of April 20 and May 18, the DeLanos provided only some
financial documents on June 14, so late that the Trustee moved on June 15 for dismissal for
“unreasonable delay”, and what they did provide is incomplete and incriminatory:

(1) only one statement of each of only 8 credit card accounts out of 18 in Schedule F,

(2) those statements are missing the section showing from which seller of goods and
services a purchase was made, for what amount and on what date, which is
indispensable information to establish the timeline of debt accumulation and its
nature;

(3) the statements are not even the latest ones of May and June 2004, but rather are of
between July and October 2003! Why would the DeLanos ever do such thing?!;

(4) the credit bureau report submitted for Mr. DeLano and the one for Mrs. DeLano are
from only one bureau, namely, Equifax, even though the DeLanos must know that
none of the reports of even the other two major bureaus, that is, Trans Union and
Experian, is exhaustive by including all accounts or up to date as to each account, but
rather the reports of the three bureaus are complementary;

(5) worse yet, the Equifax reports submitted are missing pages, even pages that must

contain information on accounts, such as outstanding balance and payment history;
(6) the figures in the three IRS 1040 forms for 2001, 2002, and 2003 do not coincide with
the information on earnings in the DeLanos’ bankruptcy petition of January 26, 2004.
18. A comparison between those credit card statements, the Equifax reports, the bankruptcy
petition, and the court-developed claims register and creditors matrix calls into question the
petition’s good faith by revealing debt underreporting, accounts unreporting, and substantial

non-accountability for massive amounts of earned and borrowed money.
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19.

20.

21.

Indeed, in Schedule F the DeLanos claimed that their financial difficulties began with “1990
and prior credit card purchases”. Thereby they opened the door for questions covering the peri-
od between then and now. Until they provide tax returns that go that far, let’s assume that in
1989 the combined income of him and his wife, a Xerox specialist, was $50,000. Last year, 15
years later, it was over $108,000. So let’s assume further that their average annual income was
$75,000. In 15 years they earned $1,125,000...but they allege to end up with tangible property
worth only $9,945 and home equity of merely $21,415! This does not take into account what
they owned before 1989, let alone their credit card borrowing and two loans totaling $118,000.
Where did the money go? Where is it now? Mr. DeLano is 62 and Mrs. DeLano is 59. What
kind of retirement have they been planning for and where?

Did Mr. DeLano put his knowledge and experience as a bank loan officer to good use in living
it up with his family and closing down all collection activity of 18 credit card issuers by filing
for bankruptcy? How could Mr. DeLano, despite his many years in banking during which he
must have examined many loan applicants’ financial documents, have thought that it would be
deemed in good faith to submit such objectively incomplete documents? Did he have any
reason to expect Trustee Reiber not to analyze them?

Have Trustee Reiber and Att. Weidman asked themselves that question? Did they ever scan the
figures in the January 26 petition to get a hint on whether they made sense? How did they
ascertain the timeline of debt accumulation and its nature when they readied the petition for
confirmation by the court on March 8, if they had not yet even requested the documents that
eventually were submitted to the Trustee on June 14? Or was it that to ask any questions and
request any supporting documents they were simply too busy with their other 3,909 open cases,
according to Pacer, as well as with the rolling in of new ones? Were they also too busy to
defend the interests of the creditors left holding bags of worthless IOUs, including federal tax
authorities, when they approved the DeLanos’ plan to repay them only 22¢ on the dollar?

V. THE U.S. TRUSTEES AND THE COURT MUST TAKE NOTICE OF

22.

23.

24.

TRUSTEE REIBER’S INEFFECTIVE AND HALFHEARTED EFFORT TO
“INVESTIGATE” THE DELANOS AND REPLACE HIM

There is now circumstantial and documentary evidence supporting reasonable suspicion of
wrongdoing in the DeLano’s petition. Is Trustee Reiber’s unwillingness and incapacity to
perform his role part of the problem?

One can only hope that Assistant U.S. Trustee Kathleen Schmitt and U.S. Trustee for Region 2
Deirdre Martini recognize that a trustee intent on properly performing his role as representative
of the estate for the benefit of the creditors would use all the means at his disposal, such as
subpoenas, so clearly available to him. Similarly, a trustee determined to safeguard the integrity
of the bankruptcy system would fulfill his obligation to report reasonable suspicion of
wrongdoing, including bankruptcy fraud, to law enforcement agencies. Such trustee would not
open the easy way out of dismissal for petitioners who may have refused to comply with a
request for documents because of their incriminating content. To do so would send the wrong
message to the public, namely, that they can always try to escape their debts by filing totally
meritless and even fraudulent petitions because if they are about to be caught, the trustee will
let them “off the hook” by applying on their behalf for the dismissal of their cases.

Yet, Trustees Schmitt and Martini have allowed Trustee Reiber to hold on to this case despite
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25.

26.

27.

28.

Dr. Cordero’s reasoned request of March 30 for his replacement. Now, the U.S. Trustees must
take notice of the Trustee’s ineffective and substandard effort to “investigate” the DeLanos.

They must not disregard any longer his obvious conflict of interest between, on the one hand,
the fact that he and his attorney approved and readied the DeLanos’ petition for confirmation on
March 8, 2004, and vouched in open court on that date for its good faith despite never having
requested or obtained any supporting financial documents, and on the other hand, the fact that
the Trustee is being required to comply with his legal obligation to investigate the DeLanos by
requesting, obtaining, and analyzing such documents, which can show that the petition that he
so approved and readied is in fact as a vehicle of fraud to avoid payment of claims.

If Trustee Reiber made such a negative showing, he would indict his own and his agent-
attorney’s working methods, good judgment, and motives. That could have devastating
consequences. To begin with, if a case not only meritless, but also as patently suspicious as the
DeLanos’ passed muster with both Trustee Reiber and his attorney, what about the Trustee’s
myriad other cases? Answering this question would trigger a check of at least randomly chosen
cases, which could lead to his and his agent-attorney’s suspension and removal. It is reasonable
to assume that the Trustee would prefer to avoid such consequences. To that end, he would
steer his investigation to the foregone conclusion that the petition was filed in good faith.
Thereby he would have turned the “investigation” from its inception into a sham!

But more is riding on this. The fact is that an independent investigation that discovered more
DeLano-like cases would inevitably lead to questioning the kind of supervision that the Trustee
and his attorney have been receiving from U.S. Trustees Schmitt and Martini. The next logical
question would be what kind of oversight the bankruptcy and district courts have been exer-
cising over petitions submitted to them, in particular, and the bankruptcy process, in general.

What were they all thinking!? Whatever it was, from their perspective now their best self-
protection is not to set in motion an investigative process that can spin out of control and end up
crushing them. However, their failure to treat the DeLano petition as a test case to be inves-
tigated openly and independently will further undermine the integrity of the judicial system and
the public trust in it. It will also confirm the worst fears about them and would only buy them
time to dig themselves further into a hole. The time is now for them to cut their losses.

VI. RELIEF REQUESTED

29.

Therefore, Dr. Cordero respectfully requests that:

30. The motion to dismiss the DeLanos’ bankruptcy petition be denied;

31

. The DeLanos be ordered to submit to the court the following financial documents:

a) financial documents relating to transactions with institutions

(1) types of documents:

(a) monthly statements of credit or debit cards, whether the issuers are financial
institutions or sellers of goods or services, with all the statements’ parts and
without redaction, including the names of the entities from whom purchase of
goods or services was made and the amount and date of the purchase;

(b) monthly bank statements, with all their parts and without redaction;
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(c) credit bureau reports, with all their pages; from Equifax, Trans Union, and
Experian;
(d) copies of their tax filings with the IRS, including 1040 forms;

(e) copies of all instruments attesting to an interest in ownership or the right to the
enjoyment of real estate, mobile homes, or caravans, whether in the State of
New York or elsewhere;

(2) period of coverage: from the present, that is, the day of fulfillment of the order, to
January 1, 1989;

(3) status of account: whether open or closed;

(4) holder of account or interest: whether in both or either of their names, or entities
whom they control, such as their children, relatives, friends, tenants, their attorney or
representative, or holders of trusts for them;

(5) deadline for submission:

(a) for documents in their possession, whether in their principal or secondary
residence, a storage facility, a safe box, or the place of an entity under their
control;

1) 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, July 20, 2004, which is the day following the return
day of the dismissal motion;

(b) for documents not in their possession:
1) by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, July 23, 2004, for the DeLanos:

(A) to have issued, through their attorney, subpoenas, returnable within
30 days of issuance, to each entity —which includes a person or an
institution- that can reasonably be assumed to have possession of
the documents described in §31.a)(1) above and that could not be
produced pursuant to §31.a)(5)(a) above, and

(B) to have mailed each with a signature confirmation slip;

i1) by 4:30 p.m. on Monday, July 26, 2004, to have submitted to the court an
affidavit attesting to their compliance with the order in 931.a)(5)(b)i)
above, and containing:

(A) acomplete list of names of all entities and their addresses to whom
the subpoenas were issued; a description of the documents
requested; the account or transaction numbers to which they relate;
and the entities’ phone numbers; and

(B) a photocopy of all the signature confirmation receipts concerning
the subpoenas mailed, clearly indicating their signature
confirmation number, which is their tracking number, and the
postmark.

b) All financial documents relating to the loan to their son referred to in Schedule B:

(1) The DeLanos’ withdrawal order, addressed to the entity from which the DeLanos
obtained the funds to be lent to their son, such as a cancelled check or the back-and-
front photocopy thereof made by the paying entity;

(2) The instrument used to transfer the funds to the son, such as a cancelled personal or
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cashier’s check, or the instrument’s back-and-front photocopy made by the paying
entity;

(3) The statement from the paying entity showing the amount withdrawn by the DeLanos
for the loan to their son and the date of payment;

(4) The contract or promissory note between either or both the DeLanos and their son, or
an acknowledgment of receipt of the funds by the son;

(5) An affidavit by the DeLanos attesting to the following:
(a) disbursement of the loan to their son,
(b) amount of the loan,

(c) description of the lending instrument used and its date or the terms of the verbal
agreement concerning the loan,

(d) date of payment,
(e) intended purpose of the loan and the actual use of the funds lent,
(f) date and amount of any repayment installment,
(g) outstanding balance, and
(h) current arrangement for repayment;
(6) affidavit by their son attesting to:
(a) his receipt of a loan from the DeLanos; and
(b) the information as in §31.b)(5)(b)-(h) above;
(7) dateline for submission

(a) 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, July 20, 2004, for all such documents in the DeLanos’
possession;

(b) 4:30 p.m. on Monday, July 26, 2004, for their affidavit; and
(c) as provided for in §31.a)(5)(b) above, for documents not in their possession;
32. the court acknowledge and take action with respect to Trustee Reiber as follows:

a) Trustee Reiber’s inherent conflict of interest between having vouched for the petition’s
good faith and having to investigate whether it was submitted with a fraudulent intent;

b) Trustee Reiber’s failure up to now, and his inability due to his conflict of interests, to
represent the creditors and defend their interests;

c) Trustee Reiber’s substandard efforts and inefficiency in requesting and obtaining financial
documents from the DeLanos, including his failure to realize the insufficiency of those
requested and his reluctance to request them through subpoenas;

d) Trustee Reiber’s unwillingness or incapacity to analyze financial documents generally or
those of the DeLanos specifically, including his failure to detect the obvious
incompleteness and defects of those received on June 14, 2004;and

e) the court, in light of such unwillingness and incapacity,

(1) recommend to the U.S. Trustees that Trustee Reiber be replaced in the DeLano case
by an independent trustee, unrelated to Trustee Reiber and the DeLanos, and capable
of conducting a competent, objective, and zealous investigation of this case;
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33.

34.

35.

(2) require that Trustee Reiber and/or the DeLanos at their expense:

(a) make the documents submitted to the court pursuant to its order also publicly
available through Pacer and, if that is not possible,

(b) make a photocopy of those documents and send it to Dr. Cordero;

the court make a simultaneous referral of this case to the FBI for a concurrent investigation
aimed at determining whether there has been fraud in connection with the DelLanos’
bankruptcy petition and, if so, who is involved and to what extent;
the court allow Dr. Cordero to present his arguments by phone and that the court not cut off the
phone connection to him until after the court declares the hearing concluded and that thereafter
no other oral communication between the court and a party be allowed on this case until the
next scheduled event;
the court reply to Dr. Cordero’s motion of March 31, 2004, for a declaration of the mode of
computing the timeliness of an objection to a claim of exemptions and for a written statement
on and of local practice.
Dv, Rechand) Conderd
July 9, 2004
59 Crescent Street Dr. Richard Cordero
Brooklyn, NY 11208 tel. (718) 827-9521
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Christopher K. Werner, Esq. eCast Settlement Corporation
Boylan, Brown, Code, Vigdor & Wilson, LLP agent for Fleet Bank (RI) N.A. and
2400 Chase Square Associates National Bank
Rochester, NY 14604 Becket and Lee LLP, Attorneys/Agent
tel. (716)232-5300 P.O. Box 35480
Newark, NJ 07193-5480
Trustee George M. Reiber
South Winton Court Mr. George Schwergel
3136 S. Winton Road Gullace & Weld LLP
Rochester, NY 14623 Attorney for Genesee Regional Bank
tel. (585) 427-7225 500 First Federal Plaza
Rochester, NY 14614
Kathleen Dunivin Schmitt, Esq. tel. (585)546-1980
Assistant U.S. Trustee
New Federal Office Building Mr. Erich M. Ramsey
100 State Street, Room 6090 The Ramsey Law Firm, P.C.
Rochester, New York 14614 Att.: Capital One Auto Finance Department
tel. (585) 263-5812 Account: 5687652
fax (585) 263-5862 P.O. Box 201347
Arlington, TX 76008
Ms. Deirdre A. Martini tel. (817) 277-2011
U.S. Trustee for Region 2
Office of the United States Trustee
33 Whitehall Street, 21% Floor
New York, NY 10004
tel. (212) 510-0500
fax (212) 668-2255
32 Dr. Cordero’s statement of July 9, 2004, in opposition to the dismissal of the DeLano’s petition

RB:34



Dr. Richard Cordero

Ph.D., University of Cambridge, England 59 Crescent Street
M.B.A., University of Michigan Business School Brooklyn, NY 11208-1515
D.E.A., La Sorbonne, Paris tel. (718) 827-9521; CorderoRic@yahoo.com

July 19, 2004
Hon. Judge John C. Ninfo, II
United States Bankruptcy Court
1220 US Court House faxed to (585)613-3299
100 State Street
Rochester, NY 14614
re: David and Mary Ann DeLano, Chapter 13 case, no. 04-20280

Dear Judge Ninfo,

Please find herewith a proposal for an order to issue upon your decisions at the hearing
today of Trustee George Reiber’s motion to dismiss the DeLano case. The order is in substance
and even its wording practically the same as the relief that I requested in my statement of July 9
in opposition to the motion, except that in compliance with your decisions, I have:

1. eliminated the requests that Trustee Reiber be replaced and that a concurrent referral

be made of this case to the FBI,

2. changed the dates for document production to those that you chose; and

3. taken account of Att. Werner’s statement that he has already issued some subpoenas.

The removal from the order of the requests in 1. above, is done to abide by your decision
and does not mean that I have renounced to those requests. On the contrary, as I stated at the
hearing, Trustee Reiber has an insurmountable conflict of interests, does not and cannot
represent the creditors’ interests, and has shown to be unwilling and unable to conduct an
investigation of the DeLanos, let alone an effective one. If he cannot exercise the minimum
degree of proper care and due diligence to make copies of documents without missing pages,
how can he be reasonably expected to be able to analyze them internally, much less by
comparing them with all other documents available, and detect inconsistencies, draw logical
inferences, and reach sound conclusions therefrom? Hence, not to replace him will doom
whatever currently passes for his investigation to an exercise in futility. Only an independent
party, such as the FBI, can conduct an investigation with a reasonable expectation of getting to
the bottom of what is going on in this case and its broader context.

Nor is there any need to wait for the production of the requested documents to find out
the whereabouts of the DeLanos’ earnings of over $291,000 in the last three years, not to men-
tion in the past 15. Wherever that money went, it did not make it into a disclosure in the petition.
The absence of that money there, except for the ridiculous trace of two cars worth $6,500,
household goods worth $2,910, and cash in accounts or in hand of $535.50, has given rise to the
reasonable suspicion of concealment of assets. Not even the appearance of those earnings by a
sleight of hand will dispel the suspicion. It is too late for that: The wrong was committed.

Therefore, I will reiterate those requests at an appropriate procedural event in the future.
At present, I respectfully submit that the order should issue as is, for the parties had ten days
since | faxed my Statement to them on July 10, to study it there and then to raise any objections
at the hearing today to its presentation in the form of an order. Consequently, having had but
missed that opportunity to object to it, they must be deemed to have consented to all its terms
just as they are deemed to be able to prove their statements in court.

Sincerely,

DV:MQJMQCB"/&M
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

In re: David G. DeLano and Mary Ann DeLano Chapter 13
Case no: 04-20280

ORDER
FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS

Having heard on Monday, July 19, 2004, the motion raised by Chapter 13 Trustee George Reiber
on June 15, 2004, to dismiss the above-captioned case, the Court orders the production of
documents by the Debtors —the DeLanos—, their Attorney —Christopher Werner, Esq. — and the
Trustee, and their submission to the Court, the Trustee, and Creditor Dr. Richard Cordero, by
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, August 11, 2004, unless otherwise stated hereinafter, as follows:

a) All the pages of the Equifax’ credit reports of April 26, 2004, for Mr. DeLano and of May 8,
2004, for Ms. DeLano, submitted incomplete on June 14, 2004, by Att. Werner to Trustee
Reiber and by the latter to Dr. Cordero;

(1) deadline for submission: by 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 21, 2004.
b) Financial documents relating to transactions between the DeLanos and institutions:

(1) types of documents:

(a) monthly statements of credit or debit cards, whether the issuers are financial
institutions or sellers of goods or services, with all the statements’ parts and
without redaction, including the names of the entities from whom purchase of
goods or services was made and the amount and date of the purchase;

(b) monthly bank statements of all their bank accounts, with all their parts and
without redaction;

(c) [see 9a) above]

(d) copies of their tax filings with the IRS, including 1040 forms;

(e) copies of all instruments attesting to an interest in ownership or the right to the

enjoyment of real estate, mobile homes, or caravans, whether in the State of
New York or elsewhere;

(f) all materials, including the cover letter(s), sent by MBNA together with the two
sets that it produced of copies of statements for the last three years of accounts
5329-0315-0992-1928 and 4313-0228-5801-9530, which sets of copies Att.
Werner referred to in his letter to Trustee Reiber of July 12, and in paragraph 5
of his Statement to the Court of July 13, 2004, and which materials Dr. Cordero
requested at the hearing without objection from Att. Werner;

(2) period of coverage: from the present, that is, the day of fulfillment of the order, to
January 1, 1989;

(3) status of account: whether open or closed;

(4) holder of account or interest: whether in both or either of the DeLLanos’ names, or
entities whom they control, such as their children, relatives, friends, tenants, their
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attorney or representative, or holders of trusts for them;
(5) deadline for submission:

(a) the deadline applies to the documents themselves for documents in their
possession, whether in their principal or secondary residence, a storage facility,
a safe box, or the place of an entity under their control;

(b) for documents not in their possession:
1) the deadline applies to copies of:

(A) subpoenas already issued, as stated by Att. Werner at the hearing,
as well as those to be issued, returnable within 30 days of issuance,
to each entity —which includes a person or an institution- that can
reasonably be assumed to have possession of the documents
described in 9b)(1) above and that could not be produced pursuant
to 9b)(5)(a) above, and

(B) each signature confirmation slip' affixed to the envelope in which
each subpoena is to be mailed or any equivalent mailing
confirmation concerning the subpoenas already mailed;

i1)the deadline applies to an affidavit by the DeLanos and Att. Werner attest-
ing to their compliance with the order in 9b)(5)(b)i) above, and containing:

(A) a complete list of names of all entities and their addresses to whom
the subpoenas were issued, whether they were mailed or hand
delivered; a description of the documents requested; the account or
transaction numbers to which they relate; and the entities’ phone
numbers; and

(B) a photocopy of all the signature confirmation receipts concerning
the subpoenas mailed, clearly indicating their signature
confirmation number, which is their tracking number; the signature
of the recipient, and the postmark.

c) All financial documents relating to the loan to their son referred to in Schedule B of the
DeLanos’ bankruptcy petition of January 26, 2004, including but not limited to:

(1) The DeLanos’ withdrawal order, addressed to the entity from which the DeLanos
obtained the funds to be lent to their son, such as a cancelled check or the back-and-
front photocopy thereof made by the paying entity;

(2) The instrument used to transfer the funds to the son, such as a cancelled personal or
cashier’s check, or the instrument’s back-and-front photocopy made by the paying
entity;

(3) The statement from the paying entity showing the amount withdrawn by the DeLanos
for the loan to their son and the date of payment to the DelLanos after the entity
processed their withdrawal request;

(4) The contract or promissory note between either or both the DeLanos and their son, or
an acknowledgment of receipt of the funds by the son;

(5) An affidavit by the DeLanos attesting to the following:
(a) disbursement of the loan to their son,
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(b) amount of the loan,

(c) description of the lending instrument used and its date or, if such instrument
was not used, the terms and date of the verbal agreement concerning the loan,

(d) date of payment,
(e) intended purpose of the loan and the actual use of the funds lent,
(f) date and amount of any repayment installment,
(g) outstanding balance, and
(h) current arrangement for repayment;
(6) affidavit by their son attesting to:
(a) his receipt of a loan from the DeLanos; and
(b) the information as in Yc)(5)(b)-(h) above;
(7) dateline for submission:
(a) the documents themselves for all such documents in the DeLLanos’ possession;
(b) the DeLanos’ affidavit; and
(c) as provided for in qb)(5)(b) above, for documents not in their possession;

d) All documents proving Att. Werner’s statement that the DeLanos’ financial problems began
10 years ago when Mr. DeLano lost his job at First National Bank and had to accept a lower-
paying job elsewhere while incurring debts for the their children’s education and evidence of
such educational debts.

SO ORDERED
THIS DAY OF

HONORABLE JOHN C. NINFO, II
U.S. BANKRUPTCY JUDGE

! Sample U.S.P.S. signature confirmation slip, with receipt on the right (the dark areas on the fax
are pink in the original) 1 U.S. Postal Service Signature Confirmation ReceiptwL

T Tbar code and tracking number? TPS Form 153, October 20007
TUnited States Postal Service Signature Confirmation™
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Christopher K. Werner, Esq.

Boylan, Brown, Code, Vigdor & Wilson, LLP

2400 Chase Square

Rochester, NY 14604
tel. (585)232-5300
fax (585)232-3528

Trustee George M. Reiber
South Winton Court
3136 S. Winton Road
Rochester, NY 14623
tel. (585) 427-7225
fax (585)427-7804

Kathleen Dunivin Schmitt, Esq.

Assistant U.S. Trustee
New Federal Office Building
100 State Street, Room 6090
Rochester, New York 14614
tel. (585) 263-5812
fax (585) 263-5862

Ms. Deirdre A. Martini
U.S. Trustee for Region 2

Office of the United States Trustee

33 Whitehall Street, 21* Floor
New York, NY 10004

tel. (212) 510-0500

fax (212) 668-2255

eCast Settlement Corporation
agent for Fleet Bank (RI) N.A. and
Associates National Bank
Becket and Lee LLP, Attorneys/Agent
P.O. Box 35480
Newark, NJ 07193-5480

Mr. George Schwergel
Gullace & Weld LLP
Attorney for Genesee Regional Bank
500 First Federal Plaza
Rochester, NY 14614
tel. (585)546-1980

Mr. Erich M. Ramsey
The Ramsey Law Firm, P.C.
Att.: Capital One Auto Finance Department
Account: 5687652
P.O. Box 201347
Arlington, TX 76008
tel. (817) 277-2011
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

IN RE:
DAVID G. DeLANO and CASE NO. 04-20280
MARY ANNMN DeLANO, s : Chapter 13
Debtors.
ORDER

On July 19, 2004 the Court conducted a hearing on the Chapter
13 Trustee’s Motion to Dismiss the Debtors’ case, as well as on the

Statement in Opposition filed by Richard Cordero on July 12, 2004;

and

WHEREARS, at the July 19, 2004 hearing, the Court required the
Debtors and their attorney, Christopher K. Werner, Esg. (“Attorney

Werner”), to do certain things, as more fully set forth in the Case

Docket Report highlighted as fcilows:

Hearing Continued (RE: related document (s) 42 Chapter 13
Trustee's Motion to Dismiss Case} Hearing to be held on

§323;zap4 at 03:30 PM Rochester Courtroom for 42

¥

et 4= e e 1

Dr. CEfG -

George Reiber, Trustee. Appearing in opposition:
Christopher Werner, Atty. for Debtors; Dr. Richard
Cordero (By phone) . {Parkhurst, Lo} {(Entered:

07/20/2004); and

NOTICE OF ENTRY TO BE ISSUED. Appearances:
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Dr. Richard Cordero

Ph.D., University of Cambridge, England 59 Crescent Street
M.B.A,, University of Michigan Business School Brooklyn, NY 11208-1515
D.E.A., La Sorbonne, Paris tel. (718) 827-9521; CorderoRic@yahoo.com

August 31, 2004
Bradley E. Tyler, Esq.
Attorney in Charge
620 Federal Building
100 State Street
Rochester, NY 14614

re: evidence of a judicial misconduct and bankruptcy fraud scheme
Dear Mr. Tyler,

Thank you for taking my call today. I appreciate your agreement to examine the
documents concerning the above captioned matter that were forwarded to you weeks ago by the
Office of Mr. David N. Kelley, U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New Y ork.

You gave them to your assistant, Richard Resnik, Esq., to review. I called him last
Tuesday, August 24. He told me then that he had not taken a look at them and could not do so at
that time because he was busy preparing to go to Washington, D.C. the next day; that he would
review them upon his return and thereafter we would discuss them on the phone. However, that
same day he wrote me a letter dated August 24 where he stated that “we do not believe that the
allegations warrant the opening of an investigation, and we will not be doing so”. Together with
that letter he returned all the files, including the August 14 update that I had sent to you.

It is remarkable how Mr. Resnik made a sudden change of time management to review
the 250 pages in the files submitted to you, including more than 30 pages of the bankruptcy
petition with 10 schedules and a Statement of Financial Affairs, which upon analysis reveal their
declarations and figures to be so incongruous as to render them suspicious; disposed of the
matter right away; and even wrote me. I hope that when you examine them, you will allow your-
self more time to consider that petition, other Debtors’ documents, my analyses of them, and the
account of their suspicious handling by bankruptcy and judicial officers that did not want to
scrutinize them. Your investment of time in a deliberate examination of these documents is
warranted by the stakes, namely, the integrity of the bankruptcy and the judicial systems.

In our conversation today you mentioned that Ms. Kathleen Dunivin Schmitt, the Assis-
tant U.S. Trustee that has her office in your building, did not consider that there were grounds for
an investigation of my complaint. I informed her of it since it stems from the DeLano bankruptcy
petition, no. 04-20280 WBNY. It is to be hoped that in your conversation with her, an interested
party, her views were not deemed deserving of implicit credibility and a substitute for an
examination of the evidence, much less the justification for not going where the evidence would
lead an objective observer who did not know her. Even if Ms. Schmitt were found not involved
in the complained-about bankruptcy fraud scheme, her opinion that there is no need to investi-
gate it or her trustee George Reiber, who has 3,909 open cases and failed to vet the DeLanos’
petition, or his attorney James Weidman, Esq., who prevented me from examining the DeLanos
at the meeting of creditors, might put her at fault. If your personal relation to her and trust in her
word render my evidence just “speculations”, as you put it, and cause your reluctance to examine
it, not to mention investigate her, your objectivity might be compromised. If so, I respectfully
request that you recuse yourself and support my referral to the Fraud Section of the U.S.
Department of Justice, Criminal Division. I look forward to your statement one way or the other.

Sincerely,

Dv, Recthond) Corderd

page 1 of 2

RB:47



EVIDENTIARY FILES
containing the bankruptcy petition of January 26, 2004
tiled by David and Mary Ann DeLano
in the Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of New York
and other financial documents produced by them
with the analyses of Dr. Richard Cordero

that reveal evidence of a judicial misconduct and bankruptcy fraud scheme

FORWARDED TO BRADLEY E. TYLER, ESQ.
U.S. ATTORNEY IN CHARGE
OF THE U.S. ATTORNEY’S OFFICE IN ROCHESTER
BY DAVID N. KELLEY,

U.S. ATTORNEY FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK,
RETURNED TO DR. CORDERO FROM THE ROCHESTER OFFICE
BY RICHARD RESNIK, EsSQ., ON AUGUST 24, 2004
AND SENT BACK FOR REVIEW BY ATT. TYLER
ON AUGUST 31, 2004

1. Copy of letter of May 6, 2004, and file sent to David N. Kelley, U.S.
Attorney for the Southern District of New YorkK ......ccoovecvevieiiinieiiiieeceeeeeeeeeeen 76 pages

2. Letter of June 29, 2004, and file sent to U.S. Attorney Kelley with letter
of same date to his Chief of the Bankruptcy Unit in Civil Matters, David

JONES, ESQ. ittt ettt et nae e et e e ae e e nnneens 128 pages

3. Letter of August 14, 2004, and file sent to Bradley E. Tyler, Esq., U.S.
Attorney in Charge of the U.S. Attorney’s Office in Rochester, .........ccccoevvevievveiennn. 46 pages
250 pages

4. Letter of August 31, 2004, in this file sent to U.S. Attorney Tyler with
the following updates:

a) Objection of July 19, 2004, by Christopher Werner, Esq.,
Attorney for the DeLanos, to Dr. Cordero’s Claim, Notice of
Hearing and OTder ........c.coiiiiieieeeee ettt s 1

b) Dr. Cordero’s reply of August 17, 2004, to Debtors’ objection to
claim and motion to diSAlIOW 1t ........coueiriiiiiniiiiiiii e 3

c) Dr. Cordero’s application of August 20, 2004, for sanctions on
and compensation from Att. Werner and his law firm for violation
Of FRBKIP RUIE Q0T 1(D) ittt 13

page 20f2 Dr. Richard Cordero’s letter of August 31, 2004, to U.S. Attorney Bradley Tyler, Rochester
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

Inre: David G. DeLano and Mary Ann DeLano

Chapter 13
Case no: 04-20280

REPLY IN OPPOSITION
TO DEBTORS’ OBJECTION TO CLAIM
AND MOTION TO DISALLOW IT

Dr. Richard Cordero, Creditor, states under penalty of perjury as follows:

IL.

I11.

IV.

VII.

VIII. Relief Requested

TABLE OF CONTENTS

The Delanos Were So Aware Of Dr. Cordero’s Legal Claim Against Them
That They And Their Attorney Themselves Included It In The Original
Bankruptcy Petition

The Debtors Cannot Contest A Bankruptcy Claim On Grounds That They

May Not Be Liable In Another Case

The Debtor’s Attorney Cannot Possibly Have A Good Basis Belief In That
He Has Standing To Assert That A Third Party, Namely, M&T Bank, In
Another Case Is Not Liable To A Creditor In This Case

A Creditor May Assert A Claim Against Only One Of Two Debtors Jointly
Filing A Bankruptcy Petition

The Delanos’ Objection Is A Desperate Attempt To Remove Belatedly Dr.
Cordero, The Only Creditor That Objected To The Confirmation Of Their
Chapter 13 Plan And That Is Relentlessly Insisting On Their Production Of

Financial Documents That Can Show The Bad Faith Of Their Petition ................

The Delanos Already Objected To Dr. Cordero’s Creditor Status And
Claim In Their Statement To The Court On April 16, To Which Dr.
Cordero Timely Replied On April 25, And The Delanos Did Not Pursue The
Issue, Whereby They Are Now Barred By Laches From Raising It Again
Two Months Later

The Debtors Cannot Overcome The Legal Presumption Of Validity That
Rule 3001(F) Attaches To Dr. Cordero’s Proof Of Claim By Merely
Repeating An Abbreviated Version Of Their April 16 Objection, Which
Was Merely An Allegation Devoid Of Any Legal Support

Dr. Cordero's reply of August 17, 2004, to Debtors' objection to claim and motion to disallow it

10
10
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1.

By their attorney, Christopher Werner, Esq., the Debtors object as follows to Dr. Cordero’s
claim:

Claimant sets forth no legal basis substantiating any obligation of
Debtors. Claimant apparently asserts a claim relating to a pending
Adversary Proceeding in Premier Van Lines (01-20692) relatingto M & T
Bank, for whom David DeLano acted only as employee and has no
individual liability. Further, no liability exists as against M & T Bank. No
basis for claim against Debtor Mary Ann DelLano, is set forth, whatsoever.

I. THE DELANOS WERE SO AWARE OF DR. CORDERO’S LEGAL CLAIM
AGAINST THEM THAT THEY AND THEIR ATTORNEY THEMSELVES
INCLUDED IT IN THE ORIGINAL BANKRUPTCY PETITION

To begin with, it escapes Att. Werner’s attention the inconsistency of affirming in the first
sentence that Dr. Cordero provides “no legal basis” for “any obligation” of the Debtors to him,
only to follow it up in the next sentence with the statement that the basis of the claim is “a
pending Adversary Proceeding”. That Adversary Proceeding, pending in the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court in Rochester, docket no. 02-2230, is a lawsuit with opposing claims at law. Regardless of
how those claims will be finally decided, the Adversary Proceeding does provide the legal basis
for Dr. Cordero’s claim!

Likewise, it escapes Att. Werner’s recollection that it was he and the Debtors who in the very
first document in the instant case, that is, the bankruptcy petition that they signed last January
26, 2004, listed Dr. Cordero’s claim, describing it as “2002 Alleged liability re: stored
merchandise as employee of M&T Bank —suit pending US BK Ct.”. Therefore, it is
disingenuous to insinuate that Dr. Cordero only “apparently asserts a claim” given that they
were the first to recognize the DeLanos’ potential liability to him and were the first to state so
in the petition before Dr. Cordero could even suspect, let alone know, that they would file for
bankruptcy.

In the same vein, it escapes Att. Werner’s candor when he states that Dr. Cordero provided “no
legal basis” and only “apparently asserts a claim” despite the fact that Dr. Cordero served him
with a copy of his proof of claim with an attached copy of his November 21, 2002 pleading in
the Adversary Proceeding containing his claim against Mr. DeLano. Consequently, Att. Werner
knows full well not only the legal nature of Dr. Cordero’s claim against Mr. DeLano, but also
its precise substance.

. Moreover, it escapes Att. Werner’s capacity to spot legally significant facts that the Adversary

Proceeding is Pfuntner v. Gordon et al, docket no. 02-2230, which is only derivatively related
to the case that he cited in his above-quoted Objection, namely, “Premier Van Lines (01-
20692)”. It is to be hoped that Att. Werner’s mistaken reference to only the Premier case is
only a reflection on his lack of accuracy when raising an allegation against another party, rather
than an intentional effort to mislead the Court and other parties by drawing their attention to a
case where Mr. DeLano is not a named party.

. In addition, it escapes Att. Werner’s knowledge of first year law school Torts that a person is

not insulated from “individual liability” just because he alleges that he “acted only as

4 Dr. Cordero’s reply of August 17, 2004, to Debtors’ objection to claim and motion to disallow it
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employee” of his employer. Debtor David DeLano is a named third-party defendant in that
Adversary Proceeding just as M&T Bank is a named defendant as well as a cross-defendant
therein. They can be jointly and severally liable because or in spite of their employer-employee
relationship.

I[I. THE DEBTORS CANNOT CONTEST A BANKRUPTCY CLAIM ON

10.

1.

GROUNDS THAT THEY MAY NOT BE LIABLE IN ANOTHER CASE

As a matter of law and common sense, Mr. DeLano’s liability in another pending case, that is,
the Adversary Proceeding Pfuntner v. Gordon et al., is not a matter that can be denied in this
case as the basis to object to a creditor’s claim against them. This is all the more so given that
in his responsive pleading to Dr. Cordero’s third-party claim against him in that other case Mr.
DeLano did not even deny his liability in that case on the grounds now asserted for the first
time in this case that “David DeLano acted only as employee and has no individual liability”. It
is not in the instant case where Att. Werner can announce the defense theory of Mr. DeLano’s
to claims in another case. What kind of lawyering is this on the part of Att. Werner, who is not
even Mr. DelLano’s attorney of record in the other case?!

Moreover, the Court in this case has no jurisdiction to decide the legal question whether Mr.
DeLano is liable in another case. Not only has the trial in that other case not begun, but also no
motion in that case has been raised, let alone heard, contesting Mr. DeLano’s liability, whether
on the ground now asserted here or on any other ground. That other case is so much in its
‘infancy’ that discovery has not even started! But even if a motion had been raised, the issue
whether Mr. DeLano is liable as an employee or in his personal capacity is one of fact that
cannot be decided on the pleadings on the mere assertion that Mr. DeLano was M&T Bank’s
employee at the time. Consequently, even if the Court in the instant case were to arrogate to
itself power to pick out an issue of fact from another case and decide it in isolation, it has
absolutely nothing to go by except a specific, 31-page complaint with exhibits and a general 2-
page denial in that other case.

Mr. Delano’s liability in another case is a matter to be decided by the court in that case
through litigation in the context of all the parties, issues, and facts of the other case. As long as
a decision in that case has not been reached and it has become final after exhaustion of all
avenues of appeal, the claim against Mr. DeLano in that other case is viable. Hence, the claim
in the other case provides a legally valid basis for a claim in the instant case.

Indeed, a claim can be asserted by a creditor regardless of whether it is reduced to judgment,
whether the claim is liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, mature, unmatured, disputed,
undisputed, legal, equitable, secured or unsecured. United States v. Connery, 867 F.2d 929, 934
(reh'g denied)(6th Cir. 1989), appeal after remand 911 F.2d 734 (1990).

Hence, the Debtors’ objection to Dr. Cordero’s claim because they dispute his claim in another
case falls due to its own lack of legal basis and the court’s lack of jurisdiction.

Dr. Cordero’s reply of August 17, 2004, to Debtors’ objection to claim and motion to disallow it page 5
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[ll. THE DEBTOR’S ATTORNEY CANNOT POSSIBLY HAVE A GOOD BASIS

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

BELIEF IN THAT HE HAS STANDING TO ASSERT THAT A THIRD PARTY,
NAMELY, M&T BANK, IN ANOTHER CASE IS NOT LIABLE TO A
CREDITOR IN THIS CASE

Att. Werner claimed at the hearing on July 19, 2004, that ‘he has been in this business for 28
years’, presumably meaning that he has been practicing law for that length of time. If so, he
should know better than to pretend that the legally ridiculous allegation that “Further, no
liability exists as against M&T Bank”, a third-party in another case that has neither a claim nor
standing in this case, provides grounds for the Debtors’ objection to the claim of a creditor, Dr.
Cordero, in the instant case.

Nor does Att. Werner have any standing to make such an allegation, for he is not M&T Bank’s
attorney in that other case. Therefore, he has no standing to represent M&T’s legal position in
that case, let alone in this case.

It should be noted that it is bad lawyering for Att. Werner to assert on behalf of the Debtors that
M&T 1is not liable at all to Dr. Cordero in the other case, that is, the Adversary Proceeding
Pfuntner v. Gordon et al, docket no. 02-2230. That only means that Mr. DeLano does not hold
M&T liable for his acts as its employee. By contrast, Mr. DeLano’s denial of liability to Dr.
Cordero carries no wait until finally established in the Adversary Proceeding. What an
unintended ‘unthought of’ consequence if M&T Bank were to argue successfully that Mr.
DeLano is estopped from arguing respondeat superior in that Proceeding as a way to shift
liability from him to his employer. Would Att. Werner be liable to Mr. DeLano for malpractice
for hanging him up out there to bear alone the liability that he may be found to have to Dr.
Cordero by a court with jurisdiction?

But even if Att. Werner were the attorney for M&T Bank, his biased opinion on his client’s
lack of liability is absolutely irrelevant to the issue whether Dr. Cordero has a valid claim
against a different client of Att. Werner in different case. Att. Werner’s opinion on any party or
issue whatsoever is not evidence of anything. Since the facts in the other case have not even
been the subject of discovery yet, let alone found by a court with jurisdiction, much less been
given anything even remotely sounding like collateral estoppel effect, not to mention anything
about res judicata for issues, Att. Werner cannot rely on any facts in that case to argue anything
in this case. He is left with nothing but that: an opinion, his biased opinion expressed at the
wrong time in the wrong context for the wrong purpose.

Indeed, Att. Werner’s purpose of defending the DeLanos by disallowing Dr. Cordero’s claim in
this case is not advanced a bit by his allegation that “Further, no liability exists as against M&T
Bank”. Even if M&T were found not to be liable to Dr. Cordero in the other case, such finding
would not preclude the finding that Debtor David DeLano was personally liable to Dr. Cordero.
This is so because in law the fact that an employer is not vicariously liable to a third party by
application of the doctrine of respondeat superior, is not incompatible with the fact that his
employee may be personally liable by application, among others, of the doctrine of ultra vires
due to the employee having acted on a folly of his own outside the scope of his employment.
The only thing accomplished by that ridiculous allegation is the undermining of Att. Werner’s
credibility as a lawyer, for he failed to do his legal research homework before coming to court
to advocate his client’s interests.

Dr. Cordero’s reply of August 17, 2004, to Debtors’ objection to claim and motion to disallow it
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[V. A CREDITOR MAY ASSERT A CLAIM AGAINST ONLY ONE OF TWO

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

DEBTORS JOINTLY FILING A BANKRUPTCY PETITION

Att. Werner also alleges in his objection to Dr. Cordero’s claim that “No basis for claim against
Debtor Mary Ann Delano, is set forth, whatsoever”. What an absolutely meaningless
allegation! Who ever said that creditors lose their claims against a debtor if the latter and his
spouse file a joint petition for bankruptcy? Whose head ever conceived of the idea that a
bankruptcy system, let alone a national economy, could be predicated on the principle that
debtors can escape their financial responsibility to those holding claims against them by the
simple subterfuge of filing for bankruptcy jointly with their spouses?

Assuming that Att. Werner understands the concept of consistency, would he dare argue in
court that Mr. DeLano is not liable to either AT&T Universal, Bank of America, Bank One, or
Capital One, etc., because these creditors, whom the Debtors listed in Schedule F of their
petition, hold claims against Mr. DeLano alone, but not against Mrs. DeLano?

Look! There, in the petition! It instructs the debtors to:

If a joint petition is filed, state whether husband, wife, both of
them, or the marital community may be liable on each claim by

[T,

placing an “H”. “W?”, “J”, or “C” in the column labeled “Husband,
Wife, Joint, or Community”.

The DeLanos and Att. Werner even marked their claims with either H, W, or J. As revealed by
their own acts, they knew that the fact that a creditor holds a claim against one but not the other
of the debtors was of absolutely no consequence. Yet, they went ahead and asserted the bogus
objection to Dr. Cordero’s claim by stating that he has “no basis for claim against Debtor Mary
Ann DeLano”. They knowingly raised a spurious objection. They acted in bad faith!

Att. Werner has cited not a single case or Bankruptcy Code section or Rule to object to Dr.
Cordero’s claim. He does not have even a legally cogent argument, only his opinion, one so
perfunctorily cobbled together that it would have shocked his professors of Torts and Civil
Procedure in his first year of law school to the point of denying him a passing grade. Thus,
what could possibly have possessed Att. Werner to think that those utterly untenable allegations
would pass muster with the chief judge of a federal bankruptcy court? Desperation.

V. THE DELANOS’ OBJECTION IS A DESPERATE ATTEMPT TO REMOVE

22.

BELATEDLY DR. CORDERO, THE ONLY CREDITOR THAT OBJECTED TO
THE CONFIRMATION OF THEIR CHAPTER 13 PLAN AND THAT IS
RELENTLESSLY INSISTING ON THEIR PRODUCTION OF FINANCIAL
DOCUMENTS THAT CAN SHOW THE BAD FAITH OF THEIR PETITION

For well over a year before filing their petition on January 26, the DeLanos have known the
exact nature of Dr. Cordero’s claim against Mr. DeLano, contained in his complaint of
November 21, 2002, in another case. So much so that they and Att. Werner took the initiative
to include it in their petition opening this case. They even marked it as unliquidated and
disputed. From that moment on they could have filed an objection to that claim because they
already knew all the factual and legal elements supporting their dispute. Since then those
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23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

elements have neither been strengthened nor added to. So what has changed? Only their level
of desperation.

Their first manifestation of desperation took place at the meeting of creditors on March 8. As
Mr. DeLano, a bank loan officer for 15 years must have expected, none of the 18 credit card
issuers that they listed in Schedule F showed up. Far from taking advantage of consolidating
and refinancing his and his wife’s debt with a loan at a lower rate secured by property, Mr.
DeLano took care to split their debt among so many unsecured nonpriority creditors so as not to
give any of them a stake high enough to make it cost-effective to pursue their claims in
bankruptcy court.

But something happened that was most unnerving: Dr. Cordero showed up in person, having
traveled all the way from New York City to Rochester, and not only did he hand out written
objections to confirmation, but also wanted to examine the DelLanos under oath! Swift to
realize the danger was the Trustee’s attorney, James Weidman, Esq., who was unlawfully
presiding over the meeting, which the Trustee had the duty to conduct himself as provided
under C.F.R. §58.6(a)(10). Att. Weidman asked Dr. Cordero whether he had any evidence that
the DeLanos had committed fraud. Dr. Cordero indicated that he was not raising any accusation
of fraud; rather, he was interested in establishing the good faith of the bankruptcy petition, an
issue that is properly raised as to any petition. (cf. 11 U.S.C. §1325(a)(3))

The exchange alerted Att. Werner to danger. He contested on that very occasion that Dr.
Cordero had a claim against the DeLanos and thus, his status as creditor. Dr. Cordero stated
grounds supporting such status. Att. Werner relented. Dr. Cordero went ahead to ask questions
of the DeLanos. However, in rapid succession, Att. Weidman asked Dr. Cordero more times to
state his evidence of fraud. Dr. Cordero had even to insist that Mr. Weidman take notice that he
was not alleging fraud. With that answer, Dr. Cordero failed to reveal how much he had already
found out about the DeLanos, their petition, and their financial affairs. Att. Weidman panicked
and put an end to the meeting after Dr. Cordero had asked only two questions of the DeLanos!

Later on in the courtroom before the Hon. John C. Ninfo, II, Trustee Reiber and Att. Weidman
stated that the DeLanos’ petition had been filed in good faith. Thus, Dr. Cordero impugned
their capacity to conduct an impartial investigation of the DeLanos without any bias toward
finding of good faith filing, the only one that can exonerate them of any charge of having
approved, whether negligently or knowingly, a meritless petition filed in bad faith.
Consequently, Dr. Cordero called for the replacement of the Trustee and the exclusion from the
case of Att. Weidman.

All this gave notice to the DelLanos and Att. Werner that Dr. Cordero was serious about
asserting his creditor status and claim. By then they had all the elements of law and fact
concerning not only his claim, but also his determination to pursue it. If they had entertained a
good faith belief that Dr. Cordero had no legal basis for asserting a claim against the DeLanos,
they had to raise that objection timely on grounds of judicial economy and fairness. Nor did
they do so after Dr. Cordero served Att. Werner with different papers in the course of the
following months. Therefore, by their failure to raise that objection in a timely fashion, they
created for Dr. Cordero a reliance interest in the reasonable assumption that they had given up
any such objection and had accepted the legal validity of his claim. In reliance thereon, Dr.
Cordero has invested his time, effort, and money pursuing his claim.

Therefore, more than four months later and only after Dr. Cordero’s relentless request for
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financial documents threatens to prove that their petition was filed in bad faith, it is untimely
for Att. Werner and the DeLanos to raise their objections to his claim...for the third time.

VI. THE DELANOS ALREADY OBJECTED TO DR. CORDERO’S CREDITOR
STATUS AND CLAIM IN THEIR STATEMENT TO THE COURT ON APRIL
16, TO WHICH DR. CORDERO TIMELY REPLIED ON APRIL 25, AND
THE DELANOS DID NOT PURSUE THE ISSUE, WHEREBY THEY ARE NOW
BARRED BY LACHES FROM RAISING IT AGAIN TWO MONTHS LATER

29. On April 16, the DeLanos raised the already untimely objection that Dr. Cordero “is not a
proper creditor in this matter”. To this Dr. Cordero timely replied less than 10 days later thus:

a) This is what the Bankruptcy Code has to say as to who is a proper “creditor”:

B.C. §101. Definitions

(10) "creditor" means (A) entity that has a claim against the debtor that arose at the time
of or before the order for relief concerning the debtor;...

[(15) “entity” includes person...]
In turn, it defines “claim” thus:

(5) "claim" means (A) right to payment, whether or not such right is reduced to judgment,
liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured, unmatured, disputed,
undisputed, legal, equitable, secured, or unsecured; or (B) right to an equitable
remedy for breach of performance if such breach gives rise to a right to payment,
whether or not such right to an equitable remedy is reduced to judgment, fixed,
contingent, matured, unmatured, disputed, undisputed, secured, or unsecured;

b) The Code’s definition of who is a creditor is more than broad enough to include Dr.
Cordero and his pre-petition claim against Mr. DeLano.

30. Not only did Att. Werner fail to provide any legal argument for their April 16 contention that
Dr. Cordero was not a proper creditor, but they did not even counter with an objection, let alone
a legal argument, to Dr. Cordero’s legal basis for asserting his creditor status, not within the
following 10 days, not within the next 30 days, not in the next two months. Far from it, to their
repetition of their objection devoid of any legal argument they add an abundance of legally
ridiculous, spurious, and thoughtless allegations. Hence, now they are barred from raising the
objection not only by untimeliness and laches, but also by bad faith.

31. Furthermore, at the hearing on July 19, 2004, Att. Werner brought up the subject of raising a
motion to challenge Dr. Cordero’s status as a creditor of the DeLanos. Judge Ninfo himself
pointed out to Att. Werner that Mr. DeLano’s liability in the Adversary Proceeding could not
be decided in this case. Dr. Cordero too mentioned many of the issues discussed here. Yet, Att.
Werner went ahead an raised the motion without taking into account any of those issues and
without presenting any legal argument that one would expect of a lawyer, particularly one ‘in
this business for 28 years’. He could not have reasonably have thought that he was acting
responsibly when he disregarded the legal difficulties of his position pointed out by the court
itself as well as by the opposing party for the record at a hearing.

32. Does Att. Werner expect the court and Dr. Cordero to rehash the same issues at the August 25
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hearing of his motion? By his conduct, he shows that he wants simply to have another go at it
while sparing himself the effort, time, and money required to do legal research, think through
the legal issues, and write down an argument worthy of a lawyer. But in the process, he has
irresponsibly caused Dr. Cordero, who holds himself to the standards of a professional, to
invest a lot of effort, time, and money to research and write this response. Att. Werner will also
cause the court to revisit the same issue, compounded by the ridiculous and spurious statements
that Att. Werner has added in his motion. For such irresponsible conduct and the waste that he
has already caused and will still cause shortly, Att. Werner will be asked to compensate Dr.
Cordero and to bear sanctions imposed by the court.

VII. THE DEBTORS CANNOT OVERCOME THE LEGAL PRESUMPTION OF

33.

34.

35.

36.

VALIDITY THAT RULE 3001 (F) ATTACHES TO DR. CORDERO’S PROOF
OF CLAIM BY MERELY REPEATING AN ABBREVIATED VERSION OF
THEIR APRIL 16 OBJECTION, WHICH WAS MERELY AN ALLEGATION
DEVOID OF ANY LEGAL SUPPORT

Rule 3001(a) provides thus:

(a) Proof of Claim
A proof of claim is a written statement setting forth a creditor’s
claim. A proof of claim shall conform substantially to the
appropriate Official Form.

Dr. Cordero’s proof of claim of May 15 not only conforms substantially to the appropriate
form, but it was also contained in the official one provided to him with the notice of the
meeting of creditors. Moreover, it was so formally correct, that it was filed by the clerk of court
and entered in the register of claims.

FRBKkrP Rule 3001(f) provides as follows:

(f) Evidentiary effect
A proof of claim executed and filed in accordance with these rules
shall constitute prima facie evidence of the validity and amount of
the claim.

Dr. Cordero’s claim is now legally entitled to the presumption of validity. As a result, it is
legally stronger than when the DeLanos and Att. Werner took the initiative to include it in the
January 26 petition. It follows that by summarizing their April 16 objection, as to which they
made no effort to support with law or precedent, and weakening it with the addition of legally
ridiculous and spurious allegations made in bad faith, they cannot possibly overcome a claim
now strengthened with prima facie evidence of validity as a result of the filing of Dr. Cordero’s
proof of claim.

VIIl. RELIEF REQUESTED

37.

Therefore, Dr. Cordero respectfully request that the Court:

a) hold a hearing on the motion;
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b) reject the motion to disallow his claim against the DeLanos;

c¢) award Dr. Cordero costs and any other proper and just relief.

DKWCGQ/&-@Z&

Dr. Richard Cordero

59 Crescent Street

Brooklyn, NY 11208
tel. (718) 827-9521

August 17, 2004

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Christopher K. Werner, Esq. Scott Miller, Esq.
Boylan, Brown, Code, Vigdor & Wilson, LLP HSBC, Legal Department
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fax (585)232-3528 fax (716)841-7651
Trustee George M. Reiber Tom Lee, Esq.
South Winton Court Becket and Lee LLP, Attorneys/Agent
3136 S. Winton Road for eCast Settlement & Asso. National. Bank
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tel. (585) 427-7225 Newark, NJ 07193-5480

fax (585)427-7804 tel. (610)644-7800

fax (610)993-8493
Kathleen Dunivin Schmitt, Esq.

Assistant U.S. Trustee Mr. Steven Kane
New Federal Office Building Weistein, Treiger & Riley P.S
100 State Street, Room 6090 2101 4™ Avenue, Suite 900
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tel. (585) 263-5812 tel. (877)332-3543
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Office of the United States Trustee Att.: Capital One Auto Fin. Dept. acc: 5687652
33 Whitehall Street, 21* Floor P.O. Box 201347
New York, NY 10004 Arlington, TX 76008

tel. (212) 510-0500 tel. (817) 277-2011

fax (212) 668-2255 fax (817)461-8070
Mr. George Schwergel Ms. Judy Landis
Gullace & Weld LLP Discover Financial Services
Attorney for Genesee Regional Bank P.O. Box 15083
500 First Federal Plaza Wilmington, DE 19850-5083
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tel. (585)546-1980 fax (614)771-7839
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

In re: David G. DeLano and Mary Ann DeLano

Chapter 13
Case no: 04-20280

NOTICE OF MOTION
FOR SANCTIONS AND COMPENSATION
FOR YIOLATION OF FRBKRP RULE 901 1(b)

Madam or Sir,

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that Dr. Richard Cordero, Creditor, intends to seek under
FRBkrP Rule 9011(c)(1)(A) and (2) sanctions to be imposed on, and compensation to be
obtained from, Christopher Werner, Esq., attorney for Debtors David and Mary Ann DeLano,
and his law firm of Boylan, Brown, Code, Vigdor & Wilson, LLP. for violation of subsection (b)
thereof, as evidenced in the grounds adduced by Att. Werner in his motion of July 19, 2004, to
object to Dr. Cordero’s claim in this case and have it disallowed.

If as provided under 9011(c)(1)(A), Att. Werner does not timely withdraw or correct his
motion to disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim after service of the instant motion, Dr. Cordero will
move this Court at the United States Courthouse on 100 State Street, Rochester, New York,
14614, at 9:30 a.m. on October 6, 2004, or as soon thereafter as he can be heard, for such
sanctions and compensation. If the motion to disallow is withdrawn before its hearing next
August 25 1s held, Dr. Cordero asks that Att. Werner and his law firm jointly and severally
compensate him in the nominal amount of $2,500, for some of the expenses and attorneys’ fees
incurred in conducting legal research and writing to oppose Att. Werner’s motion; otherwise, Dr.

Cordero will move on October 6, for any reasonable addition compensation.

DV‘M.»OJMQCBQ/&@Z&

Dr. Richard Cordero

59 Crescent Street

Brooklyn, NY 11208
tel. (718) 827-9521

Dated:  August 20, 2004
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

In re: David G. DeLano and Mary Ann DeLano

Chapter 13
Case no: 04-20280

BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF THE MOTION
FOR SANCTIONS AND COMPENSATION
FOR VIOLATION OF FRBKRP RULE 901 1(b)

Dr. Richard Cordero, Creditor, states under penalty of perjury as follows:

1. On July 19, Christopher Werner, Esq., attorney for Debtors David and Mary Ann DeLano, filed
a motion to object to Dr. Cordero’s claim in the Debtors’ case and disallow it. He limited
himself in his motion to stating the following grounds, which he did not support with any
citation to law, rule, or case:

Claimant sets forth no legal basis substantiating any obligation of
Debtors. Claimant apparently asserts a claim relating to a pending
Adversary Proceeding in Premier Van Lines (01-20692) relating to
M & T Bank, for whom David DeLano acted only as employee and
has no individual liability. Further, no liability exists as against M &
T Bank. No basis for claim against Debtor Mary Ann DeLano, is
set forth, whatsoever.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. Att. Werner has rendered himself liable to sanctions and for compensation by
presenting in order to disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim frivolous arguments
incapable of being supported by evidence in this case 15

II. Although Att. Werner knew even before signing and filing the DeLanos’
petition what the nature of Dr. Cordero’s claim was, he treated for months Dr.
Cordero as a creditor, thereby creating in him a reliance interest in that Att.
Werner deemed the claim valid so that defeating that interest now by having
the claim declared invalid renders Att. Werner liable to Dr. Cordero for
compensation 16

A. If Att. Werner believed in good faith that he had valid legal grounds to
disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim, he had to submit them to the Court and
Dr. Cordero as soon as possible for the sake of judicial economy and
out of fairness to Dr. Cordero, but he failed to do SO .......ccovvviiniiiiiiiiiiiieinns 16

B. By Att. Werner not moving to disallow and just making in passing
frivolous statements about Dr. Cordero’s status as creditor while
dealing with other matters, he revealed that he did not believe that he
had a legally cognizable objection to the validity of Dr. Cordero’s claim .............. 17

14 Dr. Cordero’s August 20, 2004 application for sanctions on and compensation from Att. Werner et al.
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C. Att. Werner deemed Dr. Cordero a creditor with the right to examined
the DeLanos and provided Trustee Reiber with dates for such
LoD 21001 s P21 1 10) o O PP PPTRT PP 18

D. Att. Werner also considered Dr. Cordero a creditor entitled to
disclosure of financial documents of the DeLanos and thus, produced
documents t0 NI ..o 19

E. If Att. Werner is to be assessed by the standard of a reasonable man,
his conduct created in Dr. Cordero a reliance interest and his defeat of
it gives rise to a right to compensation in Dr. Cordero...........cccceeeevviieeeiiinnneennne. 20

ITI. Att. Werner’'s motion to disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim is motivated, not by a
nonfrivolous argument, but rather by self-interest in casting from the case Dr.
Cordero, the only creditor who insists on obtaining documents that threaten to
expose bankruptcy fraud in the DeLanos’ petition 21

IV.Request for relief 24

I. ATT. WERNER HAS RENDERED HIMSELF LIABLE TO SANCTIONS AND
FOR COMPENSATION BY PRESENTING IN ORDER TO DISALLOW DR.
CORDERO’S CLAIM FRIVOLOUS ARGUMENTS INCAPABLE OF BEING
SUPPORTED BY EVIDENCE IN THIS CASE

2. At a hearing on July 19, 2004, which was noticed for a different matter, Att. Werner brought up
the issue of objecting to Dr. Cordero’s status as creditor to disallow his claim. He alleged that
neither Mr. DeLano nor his employer, M&T Bank, are liable in another case to Dr. Cordero so
that the latter’s claim in this case based on liability to him in that other case is not valid. The
Court pointed out, as did subsequently Dr Cordero, that Mr. DeLano’s liability to Dr. Cordero
in another case cannot be determined in this case.

3. As shown in the quote in 1 above, Att. Werner included the same allegations in his motion to
disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim. Such allegations concerning Mr. DelLano’s liability to Dr.
Cordero in another case —whose correct name is not the one given by Att. Werner, but rather
Adversary Proceeding Pfuntner v. Gordon et al, docket no. 02-2230— which is even at its pre-
discovery stage as far as M&T and Mr. DeLano goes, and involves a third party, the Bank, that
is not even a party to this case, cannot possibly be supported by any evidence in this case.

4. Consequently, by presenting such allegations in his motion to disallow, Att. Werner violated
FRBKkrP Rule 9011(b)(3), which provides thus:

(3) the allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiary
support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to have
evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further
investigation or discovery;

5. Att. Werner had a duty to review his position because an attorney operates under a “continuous
obligation to make inquiries”, so that an attorney that advocates a position that has become
untenable is sanctionable; Battles v. City of Ft. Myers, 127 F.3d 1298, 1300 (11" Cir., 1997).

6. By failing to ameliorate, whether before or after filing, the weaknesses inherent in his position,
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Att. Werner violated FRBkrP Rule 9011(b)(2); cf. Sprewell v. Golden State Warriors, 231 F.3d
520, 530 (9™ Cir., 2000). That rule provides as follows:

(2) the claims, defenses, and other legal contentions therein are
warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for the
extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the
establishment of new law;

7. Far from correcting or supporting such untenable allegations, Att. Werner further undermined
his position by adding other legally ridiculous and spurious allegations, discussed by Dr.
Cordero in his Reply of August 17 in opposition to Debtors’ Objection to Claim and Motion to
Disallow it, which is incorporated herein by reference,

8. Att. Werner’s violation of Rule 9011 is all the more obvious because it is measured against a
burden of proof that is heavier than the one that he had to bear when he signed and filed the
Delanos’ petition back in January. Indeed, once Dr. Cordero executed his proof of claim last
May 15 in substantial accordance with the Official Form, as required under FRBkrP Rule
3001(a) and filed it, his claim constitutes prima facie evidence of validity under subsection ().
As a result, the form for objecting to a claim sets out in capital letters that the objecting party
must provide:

DETAILED BASIS OF OBJECTION INCLUDING GROUNDS FOR
OVERCOMING ANY PRESUMPTION UNDER RULE 3001(F)

9. Att. Werner’s opinion as to who is liable in another case that is still at a pre-discovery stage is
legally incapable of overcoming that presumption. Nor did Att. Werner make any attempt to
argue why Dr. Cordero or his claim falls outside the scope of the applicable definitions of

“creditor”, “entity”, and “claim” contained in 11 U.S.C. §101. His assertion in blatant disregard
of existing law violates Rule 9011(b)(2).

10. By presenting his motion, Att. Werner certified that his arguments in it are either justified by
existing law or are nonfrivolous arguments for modification of existing law. Nevertheless, the
grounds adduced by Att. Werner ‘have absolutely no chance of success under the existing
precedent’. Hence, his motion to disallow based on such frivolous arguments violates Rule
9011; cf. In re Sargent, 136 F.3d 349, 352 (4th Cir, 1998), cert. denied, 525 U.S. 854, 119 S.Ct.
133, 142 L.Ed.2d 108 (1998).

II. ALTHOUGH ATT. WERNER KNEW EVEN BEFORE SIGNING AND FILING
THE DELANOS’ PETITION WHAT THE NATURE OF DR. CORDERO’S
CLAIM WAS, HE TREATED FOR MONTHS DR. CORDERO AS A CRE-
DITOR, THEREBY CREATING IN HIM A RELIANCE INTEREST IN THAT
ATT. WERNER DEEMED THE CLAIM VALID SO THAT DEFEATING THAT
INTEREST NOW BY HAVING THE CLAIM DECLARED INVALID RENDERS
ATT. WERNER LIABLE TO DR. CORDERO FOR COMPENSATION

A. If Att. Werner believed in good faith that he had valid legal grounds to
disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim, he had to submit them to the Court and Dr.
Cordero as soon as possible for the sake of judicial economy and out of
fairness to Dr. Cordero, but he failed to do so
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11. Att. Werner was so aware of the grounds for disputing Dr. Cordero’s claim, that he qualified
his claim as “disputed” when he listed it in Schedule F of the DeLanos’ Chapter 13 bankruptcy
petition of January 26, 2004. However, that qualification does not give notice that the claim is
invalid given that the Bankruptcy Code at 11 U.S.C. §101(5)(A) expressly includes a disputed
claim among valid claims for bankruptcy purposes.

12. Convinced of the validity of his claim, Dr. Cordero engaged in legal research and writing to
compose his written objections to the DeLanos’ plan of debt repayment. Then he traveled from
New York City to Rochester to attend the meeting of creditors held on March 8, 2004.

13. At that meeting, when Dr. Cordero tried to exercise his right to examine the DeLanos under
oath, Att. Werner objected alleging that Dr. Cordero was not even a creditor. However, he did
not state any legal basis in support of his allegation, just as he would fail to do later on in his
motion to disallow. Dr. Cordero stated the legal basis for his claim, Att. Werner relented, and
Dr. Cordero asked his first question of the DeLanos.

14. On that occasion, Dr. Cordero handed out his written objections to the DeLanos’ plan. Therein
he requested that Trustee George Reiber investigate their financial affairs, obtain therefor
certain financial documents from them, and inform him of the result of the investigation.

15. By producing such objections and undertaking that trip, Dr. Cordero gave Att. Werner clear
evidence that he believed that he had a valid claim and was making a considerable investment
of effort, time, and money to pursuit it. By not moving to disallow the claim, Att. Werner gave
rise to the reasonable assumption that he had dropped his pro-forma objection to Dr. Cordero’s
claim, and thereby implicitly encouraged Dr. Cordero to continue making such investment.

B. By Att. Werner not moving to disallow and just making in passing frivolous
statements about Dr. Cordero’s status as creditor while dealing with other
matters, he revealed that he did not believe that he had a legally cognizable
objection to the validity of Dr. Cordero’s claim

16. On March 29, Dr. Cordero filed with the court his Objection to a claim of exemption. Att.
Werner did not counter with a motion to disallow, but rather with his “DEBTORS’ STATEMENT IN
OPPOSITION TO CORDERO [SIC] OBJECTION TO CLAIM OF EXEMPTIONS” of April 16. Therein he
stated that Dr. Cordero “is not a proper creditor in this matter”. However, he failed to provide a
single legal reference or argument of what a “creditor” is, or a “proper” as opposed to an
‘improper creditor’ is or how this “matter” made a difference in the properness of a creditor.

17. More than a month after Dr. Cordero had stated at the March 8 meeting the legal basis for his
claim, and months after first learning from the DeLanos the nature of Dr. Cordero’s claim, Att.
Werner could still not come up with a single legal argument or citation to law, rule, or case
supporting his objection to that claim. On the contrary, in that April 16 statement Att. Werner
showed how devoid of legal support his objection was and how his failure to think through even
basic legal notions revealed that his objection was merely pro-forma. He wrote thus:

12. Should Cordero wish to obtain such records, he is free to
Subpoena them from the Bank should a proper proceeding be
pending against the Debtors, after it is established that he is
someone of proper standing with some substantial basis for process
against the Debtors —none of which criteria are satisfied by Cordero.

Dr. Cordero’s August 20, 2004 application for sanctions on and compensation from Att. Werner et al. 17
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18

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

. To begin with, whatever “proper” means in Att. Werner’s particular notion of “proper
proceeding”, the fact remains that a case is pending against Mr. DeLano: It is Adversary
Proceeding Pfuntner v. Gordon et al., which has not been finally decided so that it is still open.
Moreover, Mr. DeLano by his attorneys in that proceeding never disputed the legal sufficiency
of Dr. Cordero’ claim against him and M&T Bank contained in his complaint of November 21,
2002. They never moved to dismiss on the pleadings, for example, on a motion based by
reference on FRCivP Rule 12(b)(6). In addition, the fact that a defendant contests liability —as
all do, otherwise there would be no controversy before the court— does not mean that the
proceeding is ‘improper’.

Att. Werner also shows ignorance of the difference between having standing to sue an entity in
a case, and prevailing on the merits. Successfully contesting liability is not what determines
whether a person can be sued as a defendant in a cause of action cognizable at law.

And what about establishing that a person “is someone of proper standing with some
substantial basis for process against the Debtors”?, which upon translation most likely means
whether a person has standing to bring a cause of action against the debtor? Where is that
supposed to be established? Can Att. Werner be trying to say the nonsense that Dr. Cordero’s
standing to sue Mr. DeLano in another case be established in this case? Or is he saying that
before he can maintain his claim against Debtor DeLano in this case, he must first establish his
standing to sue Mr. DeLano in the other case? Who ever said that!? Where did Att. Werner get
these things?, for he certainly did not cite any law, rule, or case. These points are so frivolous
that by raising them Mr. Werner undermines his credibility as a lawyer and renders himself
liable under Rule 9011 to sanctions and for compensation.

Indeed, Dr. Cordero had to invest further effort, time, and money to preserve his objection to
Att. Werner’s statements about his creditor status. In his reply of April 25, Dr. Cordero quoted
and argued the definition under 11 U.S.C. §101 of what a creditor for purposes of the
Bankruptcy Code is. After that 10 days went by, 30 days went by, months went by without Att.
Werner presenting any legal support for his position or moving to disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim.
His conduct gave rise to the reasonable assumption that he had dropped his pro-forma objection
to Dr. Cordero’s claim. Dr. Cordero continued his efforts to have the DeLanos investigated.

Att. Werner did not even object when Dr. Cordero filed his proof of claim on May 15 and the
clerk of court filed it on May 19. By failing to do so, the reasonable assumption that he had
dropped his objection to Dr. Cordero’s claim became a reasonable conclusion because the filing
of the claim entitled it to a legal presumption of validity that increased the burden of proof that
Att. Werner had to bear to prove its invalidity. Yet, Att. Werner had been unable for months to
bear the lesser, pre-filing burden of proof. He who cannot do the lesser cannot do the most.

C. Att. Werner deemed Dr. Cordero a creditor with the right to examined the
DeLanos and provided Trustee Reiber with dates for such examination

Nor did Att. Werner object to Trustee Reiber’s holding Dr. Cordero up as a creditor with the
right to demand an investigation of the DeLanos’ financial affairs. In a letter of March 12, 2004,
Trustee Reiber wrote to Att. Werner thus:

| have reviewed [Dr. Cordero’s] written objections which were filed
with the Court on or about March 8, 2004. | believe there are
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some points within those objections which it is proper for him to
guestion the debtors about.

24. Att. Werner confirmed his acknowledgment that Dr. Cordero was a “proper creditor” by
writing in his letter of June 14 to Trustee Reiber:

We plan to appear for the scheduled June 21, 2004 8341 Meeting
and Confirmation unless we are advised otherwise by your office.

25. Not only did Att. Werner fail to object to Dr. Cordero’s right to ask questions of the DeLanos,
but he even proposed dates when he would produce the DeLanos for such questioning! Such
conduct is inconsistent with that of a competent lawyer who in good faith believes that a person
is not a “proper creditor” with a valid claim against the lawyer’s client, the debtor.

26. In this context, it is “proper” to notice that:
a) the only creditor that showed up at the March 8 meeting of creditors was Dr. Cordero;

b) the only creditor who objected to the confirmation of the DeLanos’ repayment plan was
Dr. Cordero;

c) the only creditor who has ever expressed an interest in examining the DeLanos under oath
is Dr. Cordero;

d) the only creditor who caused Trustee Reiber to assert for the record in open court on March
8 that he deemed the DeLanos’ petition to have been filed in good faith but that
nevertheless he could not ask the court to confirm the plan because the filing of objections
to it was Dr. Cordero;

e) therefore, the only creditor that Att. Werner could reasonably expect to show up at that
“scheduled June 21, 2004 §341 Meeting” and examine the DeLanos was Dr. Cordero, a
creditor, as attested to by Att. Werner’s own conduct.

D. Att. Werner also considered Dr. Cordero a creditor entitled to disclosure of
financial documents of the DeLanos and thus, produced documents to him

27. Moreover, Trustee Reiber considered that Dr. Cordero’s standing as creditor was “proper”
enough not only to ask questions of the DeLanos, but also to ask for documents of Att. Werner
himself. In that same letter of March 12 sent to Mr. Werner, the Trustee wrote:

It would also be helpful if Mr. Cordero could transmit to Mr. Werner a
list of any documents which he may desire prior to the [adjourned
§341] hearing.

28. As soon as Dr. Cordero received a copy of that letter, which the Trustee had failed to send to
him and in which he entitled Dr. Cordero as a “proper creditor” to communicate directly with
Att. Werner to ask for documents, Dr. Cordero wrote to Att. Werner on May 23, 2004, thus:

| ask that you let me know whether you object to providing the Trustee
or me any documents or, if only some, which. Please note that the
DeLanos have a duty under B.C. 8521(3) and (4) to cooperate with
the trustee and provide him with information. If they refuse to provide
any financial documents, then pursuant to B.C. 881307(c) they risk a
request of a party in interest or the U.S. trustee for conversion of their
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case to a case under Chapter 7.

. Far from objecting to Dr. Cordero’s claim and the right deriving therefrom to request
documents, Att. Werner provided some of the requested documents to Trustee Reiber on June
14. Then he provided some more documents directly to Dr. Cordero on July 13, 20, and 28, and
August 5 and 13. However this trickling production of documents is late, incomplete, and falls
utterly short of what Dr. Cordero requested and even the Court ordered, it is nevertheless a fact
that Att. Werner provided them to Dr. Cordero, thereby treating him as a “proper creditor”
entitled to know the financial affairs of Att. Werner’s clients, the DeLanos.

E. If Att. Werner is to be assessed by the standard of a reasonable man, his
conduct created in Dr. Cordero a reliance interest and his defeat of it gives
rise to a right to compensation in Dr. Cordero

30. If Att. Werner holds himself out as a reasonable person, then his conduct must be assessed by

31.

32.

33.

the standard of a reasonable person. He cannot conduct himself in a way that leads to a
reasonable conclusion, while concealing all along that there was no reason for him to conduct
himself in that way and that whenever it suited him, he would change course 180 degrees to
conduct himself in the diametrically opposite direction...and that therefrom would flow no
adverse consequences for him at all, but rather that the adverse consequences would be borne
by the people that he led to such reasonable conclusion, such as Dr. Cordero. Such conduct is
deceitful, unreasonable, and willfully irresponsible.

Therefore, applying the standard of a reasonable man to Att. Werner’s conduct of treating Dr.
Cordero as a creditor leads to the reasonable conclusion that Att. Werner created in Dr. Cordero
a reliance interest, namely, that Att. Werner had dropped his threshold objection to Dr.
Cordero’s claim and that Dr. Cordero could proceed to invest the enormous amount of effort,
time, and money that he, and that Att. Werner had reason to know that Dr. Cordero, has
invested in opposing the confirmation of the DelLanos’ plan of repayment and investigating
whether their petition was filed in good faith.

If it were to be held that Dr. Cordero is not a “proper creditor”, then it would follow that Att.
Werner engaged in conduct that was deceitful, unreasonable, and irresponsible and that misled
Dr. Cordero into further investing his effort, time, and money in uselessly and wastefully
pursuing an invalid claim. Thereby Att. Werner rendered himself liable to Dr. Cordero.

If, on the other hand, it were to be held that Dr. Cordero is indeed a “proper creditor”, then in
moving now on frivolous grounds to have Dr. Cordero’s claim disallowed Att. Werner has
engaged in legally unjustifiable conduct motivated by bad faith that renders him liable to
sanctions by the court and for compensation to Dr. Cordero.
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35.

36.

37.

38.

39

ATT. WERNER’S MOTION TO DISALLOW DR. CORDERO’S CLAIM IS
MOTIVATED, NOT BY A NONFRIVOLOUS ARGUMENT, BUT RATHER BY
SELF-INTEREST IN CASTING FROM THE CASE DR. CORDERO, THE
ONLY CREDITOR WHO INSISTS ON OBTAINING DOCUMENTS THAT
THREATEN TO EXPOSE BANKRUPTCY FRAUD IN THE DELANOS’
PETITION

. Since the complaint of November 21, 2002, that gave Mr. DeLano notice of Dr. Cordero’s
claim against him, Mr. DeLano has known the nature of such claim. That knowledge is imputed
to Att. Werner because under FRBkrP Rule 9011(b) he had the obligation to conduct:

...an inquiry reasonable under the circumstances [before]
presenting to the court (whether by signing, filing, submitting, or
later advocating) a petition, pleading, written motion, or other
paper...

Att. Werner signed and filed the DeLanos’ petition of January 26, 2004. By that time and at the
initiative of the DeLanos’ and with his approval, he had already listed in Schedule F Dr.
Cordero’s claim and marked it as “disputed”. At that very point in time, he had all the elements
of information that he needed to raise a motion to disallow the claim...except the one that
would provide him the motive to do so.

By taking the initiative to list Dr. Cordero’s claim and giving him notice of the DeLanos’ bank-
ruptcy, Att. Werner provided for the inclusion of that claim among the dischargeable debts if
discharge was granted. By contrast, if he had not included Dr. Cordero’s claim, then despite any
discharge, Dr. Cordero could still have been entitled to pursue his claim against the DeLanos.

As he stated at the July 19 hearing, Att. Werner ‘has been in this business for 28 years’, and
Mr. DeLano is an insider of the lending industry who has been a bank loan officer for 15 years.
Hence, they both knew from experience that in all likelihood no creditor would show up at the
meeting of creditors. And that is exactly what happened: out of 21 creditors, 20 did not show
up. Yet, these are institutional creditors with the resources to pay for a representative to travel
to the meeting. What is more, not even those institutional creditors that did not have to incur
any appreciable travel expense because they are located right there in Rochester or Buffalo
showed up! All the more likely then that a non-institutional, unsecured, non-priority creditor
that lived hundreds of miles away in New York City, such as Dr. Cordero, would not travel
either all the way to Rochester to attend the meeting.

Moreover, what would Dr. Cordero do if he attended the meeting? The petition was submitted
to Trustee Reiber, who according to PACER has 3,909 open cases, and thus, hardly the time or
the incentive to examine any petition carefully. In fact, Trustee Reiber had readied it for
submission to the court for it to approve its plan of repayment. Given that none of the creditors
had filed an objection to the plan, not even Dr. Cordero, there was every reason for Experienced
Insiders Werner and DeLano to assume that the meeting of creditors would be nothing but a
pre-confirmation chat between friendly people. So Att. Werner had no incentive to file a motion
to disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim and thereby alert him more than the indispensable minimum to
the petition and the DeLano’s financial affairs.

. But the unimaginable happened: Dr. Cordero showed up and filed and objection! However, the
imaginable came to the rescue: Trustee Reiber, willing to violate his duty to preside personally
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over the meeting of creditors, had assigned his attorney, James Weidman, Esq., to preside over
it. For his part, Att. Weidman was willing to violate the law by preventing Dr. Cordero from
examining the DeLanos, thereby frustrating the only purpose under the law for holding that
meeting! Then Trustee Reiber and Att. Weidman vouched in open court for the good faith of
the DeLanos’ petition. With such advocates for his position, Att. Werner did not have to have a
worry in the world.

40. The subsequent events comforted Att. Werner in that assurance, for despite complaining to the
Court in his April 16 letter about the so many “pages of single-space text” that Dr. Cordero
wrote asking Trustee Reiber to investigate the DelLanos or to be removed,

a) Trustee Reiber had not intention to investigate the DeLanos;
b) had asked not for a single document from them;

c) when he did ask for documents, his request was just another pro-forma exercise in its
scope and nature since he asked for:

1) just eight out of 18 credit cards listed in Schedule F,
2) for only 3 years out of 15 put in play by the DeLanos, and
3) did not include any bank account statements or titles of interest in property;

d) when the Trustee received some documents from Att. Werner on June 14, he did not even
notice that they:

1) were incomplete due to missing pages;

2) did not consist of the statements of accounts covering from the present to three years
back, instead there was inexplicably only one single statement between eight and 11
months old for each of only eight credit cards; and

3) they were not examined at all so that the 232 times that, according to even incomplete
Equifax credit reports, the DeLanos had been late in paying their credit cards belied
Att. Werner’s key statement in his April 16 letter on behalf of the DelLanos’ good
faith that “The Debtors have maintained the minimum payments on those obligations
for more than ten (10) years”.

41. Best of all, such a trustee that would not notice the obvious, let alone investigate the suspicious,
would remain in his position given that both Assistant U.S. Trustee Kathleen Dunivin Schmitt
and U.S. Trustee for Region 2 Deirdre A. Martini had rejected Dr. Cordero’s request that he be
replaced.

42. Att. Werner did not have a worry in the world...until Dr. Cordero pointed out to the Court in
his Statement of July 9 that:

7. A closer check of those documents against the figures in the petition
and the court-developed register of claims and creditors matrix points
to debt underreporting, account unreporting, and unaccountability of
assets in the petition. These grave defects call into question the good
faith of the DeLanos’ petition. They also support the reasonable infer-
ence that the DeLanos have been and are reluctant to submit more
documents, let alone the complete set of requested documents, due
to their awareness that more documents would only further deny such
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44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

good faith and warrant an investigation into whether their petition was
motivated by a fraudulent intent as part of a bankruptcy fraud scheme.

. The horror of it! Dr. Cordero, who at the March 8 meeting had emphatically stated that he was
not raising any charge that the DeLLanos had committed fraud, was now pointing to evidence of
a bankruptcy fraud scheme! Worse still, he requested the Court a detailed order directing the
DeLanos to submit bank as well as debit account statements, titles to interest in specific types of
property, and documents evidencing the money transfer and use concerning the loan to the son.
Much worse still, he asked the Court to remove his advocate Trustee Reiber and

33. the court make a simultaneous referral of this case to the FBI for a
concurrent investigation aimed at determining whether there has
been fraud in connection with the DelLanos’ bankruptcy petition
and, if so, who is involved and to what extent;

And at the July 19 hearing the Court did not flatly reject that request, but rather adjourned it to
another hearing on August 23...and for Att. Werner it was PANIC TIME BIG TIME!

That very same day Att. Werner moved the Court to disallow the claim of such threatening a
creditor as Dr. Cordero and thereby remove him from the case. He did it by cobbling together
the legally untenable, ridiculous, and spurious grounds quoted in §1 above and discussed in Dr.
Cordero’s Reply of August 17 to his motion to disallow, which Reply is already incorporated
herein by reference.

In such unseemly irresponsible haste did Att. Werner scribble his perfunctory objection that in
his one single little rushed paragraph he challenged Dr. Cordero’s claim by denying the liability
of his client Mr. DeLano and his non-client M&T Bank to Dr. Cordero in “Premier Van Lines
(01-20692)”, a voluntary Chapter 11 bankruptcy petition in which neither of the three is a
named party and liability among them is not an issue at all. Att. Werner got the Adversary
Proceeding wrong!, which means that he did not check it with sufficient due diligence to know
what he was talking about.

Why on earth Att. Werner, who ‘has been in this business for 28 years’, thought for a
nanosecond that the ‘grounds’ that he so perfunctorily threw together in his motion could
conceivably persuade the Court to disallow Dr. Cordero’s claim is baffling, unless the
explanation is only this: sheer Desperation!

After having for months treated Dr. Cordero as a “proper creditor”, Att. Werner needed to have
him declared ‘improper’ and cast out before Dr. Cordero could force the production of
incriminating documents. Evidence of this is that Att. Werner and the DeLanos have disobeyed
the Court’s order of July 26 which required that:

The debtors are to produce any documents in their possession,
regarding their credit card accounts, and provide copies to the
Trustee and Dr. Cordero by the close of business on 8/11/04.

As of the close of business on August 20, 2004, no such documents had been produced. The
debtors prefer to violate a Court order rather than to produce documents that could incriminate
them i